
1



 

 

 
 
7. Millstone Affordable Housing 

2



 

Millstone Road Land Parcel (98-12) Property Timeline 

16+ ACRES OF TOWN-OWNED LAND DESIGNATED FOR COMMUNITY HOUSING 

 

10/2019-6/2020: Community engagement includes 

3 community input sessions, and 2 online surveys. The 

Trust, with guidance from the Housing Plan and help 

from MHP & Barrett Planning, determines community 

housing goals for the property. 9/2020: Completion 

of Bohler Feasibility Study. 12/20: Watershed Study.   

5/2018: Brewster residents approve the transfer of Millstone 

land parcel 98-12 for community housing purposes, and the 

use of CPA funds to purchase 0 Millstone Road (99-1) for 

community housing purposes. 

7/2018: Town purchases 0 Millstone Road (access parcel). 

12/2018: Select Board signs grant agreement with MHP for pre-

development feasibility study and assigns management of the 

project to the Brewster Affordable Housing Trust. 

7/2019: An initial report by Bohler Engineering states that “an 

affordable housing development appears to be a feasible project 

at this location with limited constraints.” 

6/2004: Court judgment 

transfers the property to 

Town of Brewster. 

2006-2013: Work done includes 
survey, investigation of deed, and 
possible access to Millstone land 
parcel. 

 

6/1994: Town of Brewster 

files Tax Lien Conversion 

Case in Land Court. 

11/2005: Special Town Meeting vote 

authorizes Board of Selectmen to 

investigate ownership of the Town’s 

interests in 8 parcels of land (including 

98-12) for the purpose of constructing 

affordable housing, or for the sale with 

proceeds reverting to the town’s 

Affordable Housing Fund. $10,000 is 

allocated for professional services. 

 

 

Timeline prior to the drafting 
of the Request for Proposals 
(RFP) for development of the 
property which began in 
January 2021 and continued 
through September 2021 
with the guidance of MHP. 

3



Completed steps & potential next steps for the Millstone Property as of June 2023  
 
The development of this parcel for Brewster’s housing needs is an intentional process being overseen by the Brewster 
Affordable Housing Trust (BAHT). The following is a general timeline highlighting actions after the parcel was designated 
for Community Housing at the May 2018 Town meeting. 
 

Completed Steps (2019 – June 2023) 
Feasibility study on land (2019- 2020) 

In December 2018, the Select Board signed a grant agreement with Mass Housing Partnership (MHP) to provide a 
pre-development feasibility study to help determine the potential community housing options for this parcel. In July 
2019, Bohler Engineering released the initial stage of the study, the Due Diligence Report. 

Determine community housing goals for the property (Fall 2019- Spring 2020) 
This involved public input, financial realities, information from the feasibility study as well as guidance from the data 
and strategies provided in the Brewster Housing Plan. Barrett Planning Group was hired to lead the community 
engagement process, including interviews, three public sessions, and two online surveys. MHP and the Housing Trust 
also participated in information gathering, sharing, and presentations. The Trust worked diligently over several 
meetings to provide guidelines and goals around the Millstone property, taking into consideration public input, 
financial realities, information from the feasibility study and Brewster housing needs as outlined in the Housing Plan.  

Completion of Bohler Engineering’s Feasibility Study (September 2020) 
With input from the community engagement process and guidance from the Housing Trust, Bohler developed a 
Master Plan to be used to assist in the creation of the RFP. The Feasibility Study, including the Master Plan, was 
presented by Bohler and MHP to the Trust at the televised, and recorded, September 2020 Virtual Trust meeting. In 
response to abutter concerns, the Trust engaged Bohler to perform an additional Watershed Analysis in Fall 2020. 

Develop Criteria and Create a Request for Proposals (RFP) (January 2021- September 2021) 
At public Housing Trust meetings over a span of eight months, the BAHT developed criteria and drafted an RFP with 
guidance and assistance from MHP.  The RFP included the development objectives, property description, proposal 
submission requirements, developer selection criteria and selection process. The RFP was approved by the Select 
Board and issued in October 2021. Proposal responses were due in December 2021. 

Designate a Developer (January – August 2022) 
After reviewing proposals, the Town selected Preservation of Affordable Housing and Housing Assistance Corporation 
to develop 45 affordable rental homes on the parcel. A land development agreement was signed in August 2022. 

File a Comprehensive Permit Application with the Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA)  (December 2022- June 2023)  
The developers applied for a Comprehensive Permit with the ZBA on December 22, 2022. The public hearing opened 
February 7 and public comment was received through May 9. In response to ZBA input and public comment, the 
plans were adjusted, and on June 13, the ZBA approved the comprehensive permit with conditions. This is considered 
a ‘friendly 40B’ as the Town created the RFP and both the town and developers are working towards a common goal. 

 

Current & Future Steps 
Request Community Preservation Act (CPA) Funding (2023) 

POAH and HAC are applying for Brewster CPA funding which involves an application to the Community Preservation 
Committee (CPC), examination and recommendation by the CPC, and a Town Meeting vote for authorization of the 
funds. It is also expected that POAH and HAC will apply to the Housing Trust for funding. 

Finalize Funding 
After receiving a Comprehensive Permit, the developers may apply for state funding. The state usually has one 
funding round every 9-12 months and it generally takes at least two tries to successfully attain funding. However, 
with the intense need for affordable housing, the state may have additional funding rounds and availability. 

Begin Construction  
This includes a final review of plans by Town officials. Construction averages 12 months. 

 
 
For additional information contact: 
Donna Kalinick, Assistant Town Administrator, dkalinick@brewster-ma.gov, 508-896-3701, X1130  
Jill Scalise, Housing Coordinator, jscalise@brewster-ma.gov, 508-896-3701 X1169 

4

mailto:dkalinick@brewster-ma.gov
mailto:jscalise@brewster-ma.gov


Town of Brewster 
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
Fax: (508) 896-8089 

 
 
 
July 6, 2023 
 
Ms. Faythe Ellis, Chair 
Community Preservation Committee 
Brewster Town Hall 
2198 Main Street 
Brewster, MA. 02631 
 
Dear Ms. Ellis, 
 
The Brewster Affordable Housing Trust (BAHT) supports Housing Assistance Corporation 
(HAC) and Preservation of Affordable Housing’s (POAH) funding request for the proposed 
affordable housing development on Millstone Road in Brewster. HAC and POAH were selected 
by the Housing Trust to develop the property through a Request for Proposals (“RFP”) process. 
They responded to the vision crafted by the BAHT, Select Board, and Town staff, based off 
significant community input. The careful design demonstrates a commitment to balance housing 
needs, protect open space, and respect the privacy and character of the surrounding area.  
 
The compact, energy efficient neighborhood will be comprised of 45 newly built rental units, 
with 35 units designated as affordable at no more than 60% of the area median income (AMI) 
and 10 units as workforce housing affordable at no more than 80% of AMI. This development 
aligns with the goals outlined in Brewster's 2022 Housing Production Plan, which aims to 
increase and diversify year-round housing options in Brewster for a range of income levels and 
household types.   
 
After carefully considering design elements, community public comment, and environmental 
factors, on June 13, 2023, the Brewster Zoning Board of Appeals approved a Comprehensive 
Permit, with conditions for HAC and POAH to develop the property. Furthermore, the Project's 
eligibility for the Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) Program was approved by DHCD 
on August 17, 2022, underscoring the viability and importance of this development.  Local 
financial support from the Town of Brewster will be an important part of ensuring financially 
feasible. Local funding commitments are important to help leverage State and Federal resources.  
 
Thank you for all you and your committee do for the Town of Brewster. 
 
 
Tim Hackert, Chair 
Brewster Affordable Housing Trust 

Office of: 
Housing Trust  

 
 

5



 

 

 

 

9. Select Board Information 

6



Town of Brewster 
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
Fax: (508) 896-8089 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: Brewster Select Board 
FROM: Donna J. Kalinick, Assistant Town Manager & Jill Scalise, Housing   
  Coordinator 
RE: Housing Program Update 
DATE: June 5, 2023 

  
The Brewster Housing program has several ongoing and potential new initiatives that 
may involve input and decisions from the Select Board in the next few months: 
 
Brewster Affordable Housing Trust (BAHT): 
 
As voted at May 2022 Spring Town Meeting, the BAHT has care, custody and control of 
212 Yankee Drive, a single-family residence on our Subsidized Housing Inventory (SHI). 
The BAHT has contracted with Housing Assistance Corporation and their sub, The 
Resource Inc. (TRI) to rehabilitate the home and re-sell it to an eligible affordable 
buyer. The home suffered severe water damage prior to 2018. The DPW has assisted 
with landscaping and removal of some items. The remediation work and septic repairs 
have been completed. The Town will be issuing an IFB in the next month to complete 
the work required to bring the home back into livable standard. Funds for the work are 
available from a Community Preservation Act grant for housing preservation as well as 
undesignated Housing Trust funds. The cost is expected to exceed $50,000. According 
to the BAHT bylaw, the Select Board has to approve expenditures that involve real 
property that exceed $50,000. We expect to have the house fully rehabilitated in the fall 
and to hold a lottery for the affordable resale.  
 
The BAHT held a joint meeting with the Community Preservation Committee in January. 
At that meeting, it was decided that the BAHT would take over the administration of the 
Brewster Buydown program. The last of the $360,000 CPC funds that were dedicated to 
the current Buydown fund were expended in March. The BAHT will be putting in an       
application for $250,000 to the CPC for the November Town meeting to continue this    
program. Information about the Buydown program is included in your packet as well as 
a request to sign a letter of support for the CPC application. For the past six years 
the standard Buydown award was $30,000. This is no longer adequate, and awards 
are expected to range to $50,000. However, if the BAHT were to award over $50,000, 
further approval would be required by the Select Board.  

Office of: 
 

Town Manager 
Housing 

 
 
 

7



 
The Millstone Community Housing initiative of building 45 units of rental housing on 
Municipal Land off Millstone Road is currently in the comprehensive permit phase. 
Preservation of Affordable Housing (POAH) and Housing Assistance Corporation (HAC) 
filed for their comprehensive permit in late December and the first hearing was held in 
February. The Zoning Board of Appeals closed the public hearing on May 9th and will be 
reviewing a draft decision at their next meeting on June 13th. If the comprehensive 
permit is issued, the Select Board will then have 90 days to make a request to the 
Executive Office of Housing and Livable Communities (EOHLC), formerly known as the 
Department of Housing and Community Development (DHCD), for up to 70% Local 
Preference. The Housing Program will be holding a joint Local Preference information 
session for the Select Board, Housing Trust, Housing Partnership, CPC and Finance 
Committee prior to this decision coming before the Board. We also expect POAH & HAC 
to apply through the CPC in the next funding round and to the BAHT for local funds to 
support the community build.  
 
In March the BAHT voted to designate funds for a part-time, up to 19 hours, Housing 
Assistant to help implement the Town’s Housing Program. The position will begin in 
FY24 and be funded with Housing Trust funds. A meeting is scheduled with the Human 
Resources Director to create a job description and discuss the hiring process. 
 
The BAHT has been having discussions about initiatives that are in varying stages of the 
legislative process including year-round deed restrictions and Real Estate transfer tax. 
These are policy decisions that have an impact beyond just the Housing program. The 
Trust would request that the BAHT and Select Board have a joint meeting to get more 
information on these programs and discuss next steps. It may also be prudent, given 
the growth of the Housing Program, that we discuss revising the BAHT bylaw to 
increase the amount that the BAHT can approve without Select Board approval. We 
look forward to reviewing our current initiatives as we all work together to increase 
housing options in the Town of Brewster.  
 
FYI: Additional Housing Updates 
 
The regional Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) for Childcare and Housing 
Rehabilitation continues to serve the Brewster, Dennis and Wellfleet Community. The 
FY21 childcare program is currently assisting 10 Brewster children, with $36,000 
encumbered. 5 Brewster housing rehabilitation projects have also been approved in 
FY21. The Town has submitted a FY22/23 grant application and is waiting on the 
funding decision. 
 
Habitat for Humanity of Cape Cod expects to begin marketing shortly on the two 
Phoebe Way affordable homes. Habitat is waiting for the state’s final approval of the 
affirmative fair housing marketing plan. One of the homes is a veteran’s preference. 
 

8



Attachments: 
1.  Affordable Housing Trust Program Guidelines and Application 
2.  Affordable Housing Trust Bylaw  
3.  Parameters of Proposed BAHT Buydown Program 
4.  Proposed Application for the Housing Trust Buydown Program 
5.  Draft Letter of Support for BAHT Buydown Program 

9



Town of Brewster 
Affordable Housing Trust Fund 

Program Guidelines & Application 
 

 

 
 

 
Brewster Affordable Housing Trust Fund 

Ned Chatelain 
Tim Hackert 
Madalyn Hillis-Dineen 
Vanessa Greene 
Donna Kalinick 
Paul Ruchinskas 
Maggie Spade-Aguilar 
 

Staff contact: Jill Scalise, Housing Coordinator 

 

Approved by the Brewster Affordable Housing Trust September 1, 2022 

  10



   
Brewster Affordable Housing Trust Program Guidelines and Application   2 

Program Guidelines & Application 
Table of Contents 

 
 
 

Housing Guidelines        Page # 
 

I. Brewster Affordable Housing Trust Mission Statement & Goals      3 
II. Roles and Responsibilities of the Housing Trust        4 

III. Priorities of the Housing Trust          5 
IV. Eligible Activities            7 
V. Funding Guidance            9 

VI. Project Monitoring            10 
VII. Reporting             11 

VIII. Periodic Updating of the Guidelines          11 
IX. Application Process            11 
X. Selection Criteria            13 

XI. Application Form/ Attachment List          14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Glossary of Housing Terms available at: (Link to be added with new website)  

 

11



   
Brewster Affordable Housing Trust Program Guidelines and Application   3 

Town of Brewster 
Affordable Housing Trust Fund 

Program Guidelines and Application 
 

I. Brewster Affordable Housing Trust Mission Statement and Goals 

 
Housing Trust Mission Statement: 

The Brewster Affordable Housing Trust (“BAHT”) seeks to expand and preserve year-round 
rental and ownership homes that are affordable to moderate, low, and very low income 
households. Our efforts will foster a welcoming environment for demographically and socio-
economically diverse populations. The BAHT is committed to education, collaboration, and 
community engagement. 

        - Accepted April 4, 2019 

 

Brewster Affordable Housing Trust (BAHT) Goals 

The Trust has identified the following goals to use as guiding principles to implement Trust 
Mission Statement: 

 
1. Develop and Preserve Affordable Housing: The BAHT will develop and preserve 

affordable housing and support the work of others seeking to do the same. Our work will serve 
very low-, low-, and moderate-income individuals and families, which means households with up 
to 100% Area Median Income (AMI). 
 

2. Educate: The BAHT will work to educate individuals and organizations about Brewster’s 

community housing and why affordable housing is important to the town, its residents and 
visitors. Coordinating with the Brewster Housing Partnership (BHP), we will partner with other 
housing organizations from within and outside Brewster to provide educational opportunities to 
our citizens. 
 

3. Advocate and collaborate: The BAHT will advocate for development proposals, projects, 

local bylaws, state and federal laws, and other programs that advance our mission to create and 
preserve affordable housing. We will collaborate with local, state, and federal officials as well as 
public, non-profit and for-profit entities to achieve our goals. 
 

4. Engage and Communicate: The BAHT will engage and communicate with town residents, 

and listen to, and learn from, their ideas, so that our work reflects a broad consensus.  

Originally approved by the Brewster Affordable Housing Trust August 15, 2019 

12



   
Brewster Affordable Housing Trust Program Guidelines and Application   4 

II. Roles and Responsibilities of the Brewster Affordable Housing 
Trust 

 

Purpose of the Trust:  
The purpose of the Trust is to provide for the preservation and creation of affordable housing in 
the Town of Brewster for the benefit of low and moderate income households and for the 
funding of community housing as defined in and in accordance with the provisions of 
Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 44, Section 55C. The Trust can use property, both real and 
personal, and expend funds as the Board of Trustees deems most appropriate to carry out such 
purpose consistent with the policies adopted from time to time by the Select Board regarding 
affordable housing.  

Management of the Trust: 
The Trust is governed by a Board of Trustees consisting of seven Trustees who are appointed by 
the Select Board for a term of two years. The Board is comprised of one member of the Select 
Board, Housing Partnership, Community Preservation Committee, and Planning Board; two 
residents at large; and the Town Administrator or his designee. 
 

The Powers of the Trustees: 
As stated in the Declaration of Trust, the Trustees may undertake any activity that would create 
and preserve affordable housing for the benefit of low and moderate income households. Their 
powers include, but are not limited to, the right to receive, purchase and convey real or personal 
property; to sell, lease, exchange or transfer property; to execute deeds, contracts, and grant 
agreements; to employ and compensate advisors and agents; to borrow money; to manage or 
improve real property and to abandon property which the Board determines not to be worth 
retaining; to issue policy goals and statements to serve as guidelines for the Trust and to provide 
funds for the benefit of low and moderate income households to assist in the acquisition, 
creation, preservation, rehabilitation and support of housing affordable for such families. Any 
expenditure of funds in an amount over $50,000, and any sale, lease, exchange, transfer of 
conveyance of property having a value in excess of $50,000, requires the approval of the Select 
Board. 
 

Funding of the Trust: 
The Brewster Affordable Housing Trust Fund (the “Trust Fund”) was initially funded by the 
dissolution of the Affordable Housing Fund and the transfer of the funds to the Trust Fund. 
Community Preservation Act (“CPA”) funds, in accordance Section 5 of the CPA, may be 
allocated to the Trust Fund.  CPA funds appropriated into the Trust Fund may be used only for 
CPA approved activities, such as the acquisition, creation, preservation, and support of 
community housing, and for the rehabilitation of community housing acquired or created using 
CPA Funds. Additionally, the Trust Fund has received free cash from the Town of Brewster, 
including a portion of  Brewster’s Short Term Rental Revenue; these monies are not subject to 
the CPA restrictions, but are required to be used for the purposes of the Trust. 

 

13



   
Brewster Affordable Housing Trust Program Guidelines and Application   5 

III. Housing Trust Priority Initiatives for FY 2022-23 
 

A. Develop and Preserve Affordable Housing:   
 Develop new affordable housing (by building):  

o Support and advance the development of community housing on the 
Millstone Road property. Subsequent to RFP issuance, select developer 
and support their efforts to develop rental housing in a timely manner. 
Determine the amount of funding that the Trust should reserve for a 
potential request, provide support through funding cycles and permitting 
process, continue to engage the public. 

o Participate in the exploration of the potential development of community 
housing on the Cape Cod Sea Camps Parcels. 

 Develop new affordable housing (without building):  
o Evaluate the effectiveness of the current accessory dwelling unit bylaws 

and advocate for policy, financial, or implementation changes if necessary.  
o Evaluate the effectiveness of the current rental voucher program.  
o Revisit the feasibility of a rent-to-own program.  

 Evaluate the effectiveness and reach of the existing Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) home rehabilitation program, refine procedures, and study 
whether the Trust needs to explore supplementing the program in any way. 

 Continue to work to preserve the existing 3 Subsidized Housing Inventory (SHI) 
homes in distress and other units through outreach and, when required, with 
financial support. 

 Work with the Community Preservation Committee (CPC) to determine the future 
of the Brewster Buy Down program 
 

 Develop rules and program guidelines for the BAHT, particularly around funding 
requests 

 

 Participate in the Local Comprehensive Plan (LCP) process, including advocate 
and explore a review of current zoning as it relates to housing. 

 
 

B. Educate:   

 Hold at least annual forums and Select Board updates as well as regularly post 
information on the Town website.  

o Community Housing Fair and Forum 

 Hold ongoing joint meetings with other committees such as CPC, BHP, SB & FC  

 Hold, and/or participate in, Community Housing education sessions and forums 
that address or include Fair Housing, Local Preference, and Regional 
Partnerships.  

14



   
Brewster Affordable Housing Trust Program Guidelines and Application   6 

C. Advocate and Collaborate:   

 Advocate for the Trust’s current funding strategy that includes allocations from 
the Community Preservation Act (CPA), dedication of the short-term rental 
revenue, free cash and/or budget allocations, and Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) 

 Develop a 5-year Financial Plan 
 Advocate for a more flexible CPA funding formula 
 Explore other potential Trust funding 
 Update Housing Production Plan 
 Participate in the Local Comprehensive Plan (LCP) planning process 
 Work with other housing partners in Town and in surrounding Towns.          

  For example: 
o Partner: Explore partnering with local entities for street/yard clean-ups like 

the Big Fix or Huckleberry Lane event.  
o Support: local initiatives such as Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) bylaw 

review with BHP, Community Preservation Committee (CPC) Buy-Down 
Program, Cape Housing Institute,  Habitat for Humanity Red Top Road, 
Serenity at Brewster, and Cape Cod Sea Camps. 

o Network: Attend events and communicate with housing partners. 
o Guide: With other Town entities (including Open Space) create guidelines 

for land. Review town parcels and properties for suitability for housing.  

D. Engage and Communicate:    

 Provide opportunities for residents to share their thoughts and ideas.  
o Community Housing Forum  
o Continue engagement with residents during the Millstone Road developer 

selection process. 
o Citizen’s Forum   
o Develop a diversity inclusion working group 

 

 

Approved by the Housing Trust January 6, 2022 

  

15



   
Brewster Affordable Housing Trust Program Guidelines and Application   7 

 

IV. Eligible Activities 
 
The Trust Fund can be used to support the following activities. Note that CPA funds must be used 
only for those purposes specified in the CPA as allowable activities, while the Trustees may use 
non-CPA funds for programs offering a broader range of purposes that are consistent with the 
Declaration of Trust and the provisions of MGL Chapter 44, Section 55C. 

 

A. PRESERVATION PROGRAMS  
 
Preservation of Subsidized Housing Inventory (SHI) Affordable Homes: 
 

1. Housing Preservation and Improvement Activities 
The BAHT received a CPA grant of $500,000 in November 2019 to assist in the 
preservation and acquisition of SHI homes. Funds will be prioritized for 
affordable homes identified as non-compliant (for example, uninhabited) and/or 
at risk of losing their affordable deed restriction.  
 
In certain instances, the BAHT may use funds to preserve affordability of units 
already included in the Town’s Subsidized Housing Inventory (“SHI”) by 
providing funds for repairs necessary to enable residents to continue to reside in 
their homes. This may include the purchase of homes in specific circumstances. 
 
CPA Allowable Activities: CPA funds may be used for repairs that are necessary 
to preserve affordable housing from injury, harm or destruction, which may 
include, but are not limited to, the following:   

 Building envelope and site work to preserve the structural integrity of the homes 
 Roof, siding and window replacements to assure the water tightness of the 

housing units 
 Upgrading of dangerous electrical or plumbing systems 
 Replacement of dangerous building systems that threaten the housing units 
 Failed Septic Systems 
 Installation of hard-wired smoke alarms, sprinklers and other building fire 

suppression systems 
 Funds cannot be spent for maintenance or operating costs 

Whether the BAHT will fund a particular project depends on the facts involved in each case, the 
amount of funds sought, the eligibility of persons seeking assistance, the necessity of the repairs, 
the funds available to the BAHT to support such program, whether the homes were acquired or 
created originally with CPA funds, and other factors. The BAHT may obtain new deed 
restrictions on properties to ensure the future affordability of the homes. There is no guarantee of 
financial assistance. 
 

16



   
Brewster Affordable Housing Trust Program Guidelines and Application   8 

B. SUPPORT PROGRAMS (Loans/Grants for Individuals)  
 

1. Brewster Rental Assistance Program 
Provide a monthly rent subsidy and support to income eligible households. This program 
is currently managed by Housing Assistance Corporation (HAC) for the BAHT. For more 
information, see the Housing Office Webpage or this link: Microsoft Word - FACT SHEET 
Brewster Rental Assistance Program.docx (brewster-ma.gov) 

CPA Allowable Activities:  
Grants, loans, rental assistance, interest-rate write downs or other assistance 
directly to individuals who are eligible for community housing for the purpose of 
making housing affordable 

2. Brewster Affordable Home Buyers Buy-Down Program   
The Town of Brewster, through Community Preservation Funds, provides up to $30,000 
of grant assistance for eligible buyers purchasing a home in Brewster. The program, 
contingent on existing funds, is available to households qualifying at 80% AMI (Area 
Median Income) who agree to place a permanent affordable housing deed restriction on 
the home. The grant assistance is provided as an interest free loan which is forgivable 
after 30 years if the owners remain in compliance with the terms of the restriction. This 
program is overseen by the Community Preservation Committee and specific applications 
for this program are available at Town Hall and on the Housing Office webpage: Buy-

Down Ready Buyer Application (laserfiche.com) 

CPA Allowable Activities:  
Grants, Loans, Rental assistance, interest-rate write downs or other assistance 
directly to individuals who are eligible for community housing for the purpose of 
making housing affordable 

3. Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Housing Rehabilitation & 
Childcare Assistance Program 
CDBG housing rehabilitation and childcare assistance funds are available for low to 
moderate income Brewster households earning up to 80% of the Area Median Income. 
Housing Rehabilitation funds can provide a 0% interest, deferred, forgivable loan to 
make critical home repairs. The program is designed to improve the housing conditions 
of income qualified households. Funds up to $50,000 are available to eligible residents to 
pay for critical home repairs, like: roofing and siding, electrical, heating and plumbing 
work, structural repairs, lead paint abatement and energy efficiency upgrades such as 
windows and storm doors. This program is managed by The Resource Inc. (TRI) and 
applications are available from TRI at jean@theresource.org. Childcare funding offers 
eligible families subsidies of up to $6,000 per child, to assist families in seeking or 
maintaining employment. Bailey Boyd Associates oversees the Childcare assistance and 

applications are available here: Childcare Programs — Bailey Boyd Associates. 

 

 

17

https://brewster-ma.gov/files/rentfact.pdf
https://brewster-ma.gov/files/rentfact.pdf
https://portal.laserfiche.com/Portal/DocView.aspx?id=110254&repo=r-153f9d98
https://portal.laserfiche.com/Portal/DocView.aspx?id=110254&repo=r-153f9d98
mailto:jean@theresource.org
https://www.baileyboyd.com/childcare-programs-1


   
Brewster Affordable Housing Trust Program Guidelines and Application   9 

C. CREATION PROGRAMS (Development Loans/Grants) 

 

1. DEVELOP NEW RENTAL HOUSING (Rental Expansion Program) 
 New Construction Units 

Provide funding assistance to developers for construction of new affordable rentals with 
deed restrictions required for long-term affordability. 
 

2. DEVELOP NEW HOME OWNERSHIP HOUSING (Home Ownership 
Expansion Program) 

 New Construction Units 
Provide funding assistance to developers for construction of new home ownership 
properties with deed restrictions required for long-term affordability. 
 
 

V. Funding Guidance 

 
The BAHT has established the following funding guidelines for eligible activities: 

 All financial transactions undertaken by the BAHT where Community Preservation Act 
(CPA) funds are used must comply with the requirements of the Community Preservation 
Act (CPA). 

 All affordable rental and homeownership units created through new construction must be 
deed restricted. 

 Development loans provided under the Home Ownership and Rental Expansion Program 
are limited to up to $100,000 per affordable unit and a maximum project amount 
determined by the Trust. Tax credit units are limited to $50,000 per affordable unit. The 
BAHT will determine the applicable interest rate to assist with project feasibility. 
Payments will be deferred until the property is transferred unless the recipient is 
determined to be in violation of loan terms (allowances for extenuating circumstances with 
an appeal process), in which case payments will be due. Any loan proceeds will be 
deposited into the Housing Trust Fund. All loans must be secured by a mortgage against 
the property and may be subordinated to other project lenders. Deed riders for 10-15 years 
are required for projects where the loan is more than $20,000 per unit and required for at 
least 30 years or in perpetuity for loans of $50,000 or more per unit. 

 For rental developments, the project sponsor must enter into a Regulatory Agreement with 
the Town and subsidizing agency that insures affordability in perpetuity to the greatest 
extent possible. 

 A Land Development Agreement will be required for any Town-owned land. 

 

18



   
Brewster Affordable Housing Trust Program Guidelines and Application   10 

 In addition to BAHT approval, expenditures over $50,000 require Select Board approval.  
 

 Funding is directed to creating and preserving affordable housing for low and moderate 
income households, as defined below: 
 

Low-income housing – Housing for those persons and families whose annual income 
is at or below 80% of the area median income (AMI) for the Barnstable County area as 
determined annually by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD) and adjusted by household size. 
 
Moderate-income housing – Housing for those persons and families whose annual 
income is above 80% AMI but at or below 100% AMI for the Barnstable County area 
as determined annually by HUD and adjusted by household size. 

 
While funded projects can include income tiers above the 100% AMI threshold, the Trust 
Fund cannot be used for projects that are solely targeted to income levels above the 100% 
level.  

 Funding guidelines can be waived or modified, if permitted under applicable law, 
upon a majority vote of the BAHT and, if required, by the Select Board. 

 
 

VI. Project Monitoring  
 

The BAHT, with staff support from the Housing Office and/or management agency, 
will work with the state’s Department of Housing and Community Development 
(DHCD) and project sponsors to insure that all units that have been funded by the Trust 
Fund are eligible for inclusion on the SHI, meet all requirements to be counted as part 
of the SHI, and are monitored to ensure the continued affordability of such units. 

BAHT will also monitor the affordability of units that have received Trust funds but are 
not eligible for inclusion on the SHI. In these cases, the BAHT, with support from the 
Housing Office and/or a management company, will annually confirm the continued 
occupancy and eligibility of unit occupants by: 

 Checking Assessors records and resident mail listings to verify the continued 
occupancy of the units. If the units involve homeownership, the deed rider will 
require that the occupant notify the Town upon any intent to sell, and the Town will 
have an opportunity to purchase or resell the unit based on a prescribed process 
included in the deed rider (adaptation of DHCD’s deed rider). If the units involve 
rentals, send a letter to the project sponsor requesting documentation listing the 
incomes of the tenants and a copy of their leases to ensure that the tenants meet the 
income qualifications, and the rents continue to be affordable. 

 Checking the Barnstable County Registry of Deeds to make sure that there have 
been no changes in ownership/residency. 

19



   
Brewster Affordable Housing Trust Program Guidelines and Application   11 

 Preparing an annual compliance report that documents the continued affordability of 
these units. 

 

VII. Reporting 

 
With staff support from the Housing Office, the BAHT shall prepare an annual report that 
summarizes the use of Trust funds during the fiscal year including amounts of funding, type of 
funding, project description and status, as well as the balance in the Trust Fund. The books and 
records of the Trust shall be maintained by the Town Accountant and audited annually as part of 
the annual audit of the Town of Brewster. The results of the audit shall be provided to the Town. 
 
 
 

VIII. Periodic Updating of the Guidelines  
 

These Housing Guidelines shall be reviewed at least every three (3) years by the BAHT, with input 
from the CPC and the Brewster Housing Partnership, and updated as necessary. The BAHT is 
responsible for approving any changes and can also choose to amend the Guidelines any time if it 
determines that certain requirements are no longer effective or viable or are necessary or 
appropriate. Section III will be updated regularly to reflect the BAHT’s new FY priorities. 

 
 
 

IX. Application Process  
 

The application process involves providing information to the BAHT before funding 
approvals can be granted. All submissions, scheduling and communications will be 
coordinated through the Brewster Housing Office. The BAHT will accept applications on a 
rolling basis. 

Only those projects that receive the approval of the Board of Trustees and, if required, the 
Select Board, are eligible to access funding from the Trust Fund. In making its determinations 
on funding, the BAHT may consult with the Brewster Community Preservation Committee, 
Planning Department and Planning Board, Zoning Board of Appeals, and/or other Town 
commissions or boards. The approved applicant must enter into an agreement with the BAHT 
that specifies the purpose and scope of the project, projected timeframe, and approved funding 
for the project. The applicant must submit an original copy of the signed contract. 

 
  

20



   
Brewster Affordable Housing Trust Program Guidelines and Application   12 

X. Selection Criteria  

The BAHT will apply the following selection criteria in its review of applications: 

 

Selection Criteria  
The project/program proposal is consistent with the BAHT’s Funding Priorities. These 
include the following: 

 
1. Increase affordable housing opportunities for year-round community to the extent permitted by law, 

by prioritizing opportunities that support the Trust’s mission to expand and preserve year-round rental 
and home ownership homes that are affordable to moderate, low, and very low-income households. 
These projects should provide a welcoming environment for demographically and socio-economically 
diverse populations. Proposals may serve a range of local housing needs, even if some of the units may 
not be eligible for inclusion in the state’s Subsidized Housing Inventory (SHI). 

2. Advance the creation of year-round affordable rental units to serve Brewster's most financially 
vulnerable residents and other income-qualified persons and households. 

3. Identify and take advantage of existing structures and/or properties that have discounted or 
nominal acquisition costs, such as town owned or tax foreclosure properties, to make the 
development of affordable housing more financially feasible. 

4. Promote affordable housing using methods that minimize impacts on the built environment, such 
as accessory apartments, small infill developments in existing neighborhoods, or buy-down 
initiatives that convert existing housing into affordable units. 

5. Develop a range of projects to serve a range of housing needs including housing for families, 
seniors, and special needs populations. 

6. Encourage mixed-income development to promote diversity and inclusion. 

The funding request is reasonable as a portion of the overall project costs and on a per-unit basis 
and adheres to the BAHT Funding Guidelines. 
The development pro forma demonstrates that the project is feasible (not applicable if Trust Funds are 
requested for predevelopment activities to determine feasibility of a project). 
The applicant has demonstrated significant leveraging of the requested BAHT Funds with other 
public and/or private funding sources. 
The applicant is qualified to undertake the project and has demonstrated success in similar 
capacity with comparable projects. 
The applicant has demonstrated appropriate site control. 
Projects provide additional public benefits such as open space, environmental/conservation, 
energy efficiency, historic preservation, public safety, economic development, etc. 
The project meets demonstrated community needs. 
The applicant has demonstrated project support by other Town boards, committees, the Cape 
Cod Commission, other pertinent organizations, and Brewster citizens, as appropriate. 

 
 

 

21



   
Brewster Affordable Housing Trust Program Guidelines and Application   13 

XI. Application Form/ Attachment List   

22



   
Brewster Affordable Housing Trust Program Guidelines and Application   14 

Town of Brewster 

Affordable Housing Trust 

Application Package 

APPLICATION FORM 

Project/Program Name: ____________________________________________   

Trust Program: __________________________________________   

Project Location 

Street Address: ______________________________  Assessor’s Map & Lot #:_______   

 

Legal Property Owner of Record:___________________________________________________  

Sponsor(s)/Organization: _________________________________________________________   

Contact Person Name & Title: _____________________________________________________   

Telephone:  __________________________Email: ______________________________   

Mailing Address: __________________________________________________________   

Budget Summary 

Total Trust Funds Requested: 

Total Project Cost: 

Sponsor’s Signature: _______________________________ Date: __________ 

23



   
Brewster Affordable Housing Trust Program Guidelines and Application   15 

Sponsor’s Printed Name & Title:  ___________________________________________   

Project Summary: Please summarize the proposed project and any special features (support 
services, sustainability or energy conservation components, historic preservation, etc.)

24



   
Brewster Affordable Housing Trust Program Guidelines and Application   16 

1. Sources of Funds: Check all that apply, include dollar amount, and circle if funds are committed or 
proposed. 

Brewster Affordable Housing Trust $  __________________ committed/proposed 

*Brewster Community Preservation Fund $ __________________ 
 ______________committed/proposed (*Some funding from the Trust is derived from Community Preservation Funds. Check this box if seeking 

additional funds from the Community Preservation Committee.) 

Private Bank Loan__________________$                                      committed/proposed 

Sales Revenue  $ 

Other: $ 

Other: $ 

Other: $  

2. Uses of Funds: Check all that apply.  Predevelopment (feasibility, engineering, appraisals, 
environmental studies/testing/mitigation, legal work, etc.) 

 

Acquisition 

Preservation 

Site Preparation (tree clearing, earth removal, etc.) 

New Construction 

Redevelopment 

Administration 

Operations 

Marketing 

Other (please explain) 

3.   Targeted Population: Check all that apply. 

Family                                                          Senior/Elderly 

   Homeless/At Risk of Homelessness               Special Needs (identify population): ___________ 

  Housing with Support Services (identify service providers):  

  Other (identify):    

4.   Type of Housing: Check all that apply. 
Homeownership: Rental: 

  Single-family                                                 Single Room Occupancy 

  Condominium                                                Individual/Family 

  Cooperative                                                    Group Residence, Congregate 

  Other                                                                      Other (identify):    

 

committed/proposed 

committed/proposed 

committed/proposed 

committed/proposed 

25



 

 
Brewster Affordable Housing Trust Guidelines  17 
 

5. Unit Composition (If Applicable): List number of units in each category 

  Total <=30% 
AMI 

<=50% 
AMI 

<=80% 
AMI 

<=100% 
AMI 

<=120% 
AMI 

Market 
Rate 

SRO               
1 Br               
2 Br               
3 Br               
4 Br/+               

Note: Refer to (www.huduser.org) for latest fair housing rates. 

7.  If applicable, Information about the Development Team including: 
 Owner/sponsor/development entity- 
 Experience- 
 Architect- 
 Engineer- 
 General Contractor (if known)- 
 Development Pro-forma- 
 Operating budget for rental project (For example- One Stop funding application) 
 Development pro-forma with sales prices for home ownership units. 

 

                                                                 

Submission: All completed application packets should be submitted to: 

 

Town of Brewster Affordable Housing Trust 
Jill Scalise, Housing Coordinator 
2198 Main Street  
Brewster, MA 02631 
jscalise@brewster-ma.gov 
Phone: 5089-896-3701, ext. 1169 
 

26

http://www.huduser.org/
mailto:jscalise@brewster-ma.gov


Chapter 18

AFFORDABLE HOUSING TRUST FUND

[HISTORY: Adopted 5-7-2018 STM by Art. 7. Amendments noted where applicable.]
§ 18-1. Name of the Trust.

The Trust shall be called the "Brewster Affordable Housing Trust," herein referred to as the "Trust."

§ 18-2. Purpose.

The purpose of the Trust shall be to provide for the preservation and creation of affordable housing in the Town
of Brewster for the benefit of low and moderate income households and for the funding of community housing as
defined in and in accordance with the provisions of Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 44B ("Chapter 44B").
The Trust shall use such property, both real and personal, and shall dispense such funds in such manner as the
Board of Trustees shall deem most appropriate to carry out such purpose consistent with the policies adopted from
time to time by the Board of Selectmen regarding affordable housing. The Trust shall be governed by a Board of
Trustees in accordance with General Laws Chapter 44, Section 55C ("Section 55C"), as revised from time to time,
and the authority granted by Town Meeting.

§ 18-3. Board of Trustees.

A. There shall be a seven-member Board of Trustees (the "Board") appointed by the Board of Selectmen from
amongst the residents of the Town (except that the Town Administrator or a staff member selected as his or
her designee shall not be required to be Town residents). The members of the Board shall be comprised of as
follows: [Amended 5-6-2019 ATM, Art. 16]

(1) One member of the Board of Selectmen;

(2) One member of the Brewster Housing Partnership;

(3) One member of the Community Preservation Committee;

(4) One member of the Planning Board;

(5) Two residents at large; and

(6) The Town Administrator, a staff member or a resident (nonstaff member) selected by the Town
Administrator as the Administrator’s designee.

B. Trustees shall serve for a term not to exceed two years, with the initial terms of the Trustees staggered such
that Trustees who are members of the Board of Selectmen, the Brewster Housing Partnership, the Community
Preservation Committee, and the Planning Board, shall serve for a term of one year, and thereafter for two
years. Trustees who are appointed as representatives of boards or committees shall serve for two-year terms
or until they no longer serve on such board or committee, whichever is shorter. The Town Administrator shall
serve by virtue of the office. To the extent possible, the Board of Selectmen shall appoint as Trustees
individuals with background or interest in affordable housing, and specifically those with financial, legal or
development expertise, or experience and perspective on housing preservation. Any Trustee (other than the
Town Administrator or staff person acting as the Town Administrator’s designee) who ceases to be a resident
of the Town of Brewster shall vacate the office. Any Trustee may resign by filing with the Town Clerk written
notice thereof. [Amended 5-6-2019 ATM, Art. 16]

C. Any vacancy in the office of Trustee shall be filled by appointment of the Board of Selectmen, notice of which
shall be filed with the Town Clerk. The title to the Trust estate shall thereupon and without the necessity of
any conveyance be vested in such succeeding Trustee jointly with the remaining Trustees.

18:1

27



§ 18-4. Meetings of the Trust.

The Board shall meet at least quarterly in the Town of Brewster at such time and at such place as the Trustees shall
determine. Special meetings may be called by the Chair or by a majority of Trustees. Notice of all meetings of
the Trust shall be given in accordance with the provisions of the Open Meeting Law, General Laws Chapter 30A,
Sections 18-25. While a majority of the full Board of Trustees shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of any
business of the Board of Trustees, less than a quorum may, subject to the requirements of the Open Meeting Law,
continue a meeting to a time, date and place certain.

§ 18-5. Powers of the Board.

The powers and duties of the Board shall include the following, all of which shall be carried on in furtherance of
the purposes and in compliance with the terms set forth in Section 55C of Chapter 44 of the General Laws:

D. Trustees may be removed by the Board of Selectmen at any time for cause following the opportunity for a
hearing. For purposes of this bylaw, the term "cause" shall include, but not be limited to, violation of any
local, state, or federal law; incapacity to perform the duties of a Trustee; and acts of a Trustee, that in the
opinion of the Board of Selectmen, are negligent or detrimental to the Town of Brewster or the Trust; and
four consecutive absences from Board of Trustees meetings. Reference to the Trustee shall mean the Trustee
or Trustees for the time being hereunder.

E. The Trustees shall annually elect a Trustee to serve as Chair. The Chair may establish sub-committees and/or
ad hoc task-related committees to carry out the purposes of the Trust. Chairs of the sub-committees may be
selected by the members of the sub-committees.

A. To accept and receive real property, personal property or money, by gift, grant, contribution, devise or transfer
from any person, firm, corporation or other public or private entity, including but not limited to money, grants
of funds or other property tendered to the Trust in connection with any by-law or any general or special law
or any other source, including money appropriated pursuant to the Community Preservation Act, Chapter 44B
of the Massachusetts General Laws; provided, however, that any Community Preservation Act monies
received shall be used exclusively for community housing and shall remain subject to all the rules, regulations
and limitations of that chapter when expended by the Trust, and such funds shall be accounted for separately
by the Trust; and provided further, that no later than July 15 of any calendar year, the Trust shall ensure that
all expenditures of funds received from said Chapter 44B are reported to the Community Preservation
Committee for inclusion in the year end reporting to the Massachusetts Department of Revenue;

B. To purchase and retain real or personal property, including, without restriction, investments that yield a high
rate of income or no income; provided that any expenditure of funds in excess of $50,000 to purchase real or
personal property shall first be approved by the Board of Selectmen;

C. To sell, lease, exchange, transfer or convey any personal, mixed, or real property at public auction or by
private contract for such consideration and on such terms as to credit or otherwise, and to make such contracts
and enter into such undertaking relative to Trust property as the Board deems advisable notwithstanding the
length of any such lease or contract; provided that any sale, lease, exchange, transfer or conveyance of any
property having a value in excess of $50,000 shall first be approved by the Board of Selectmen;

D. To execute, acknowledge and deliver deeds, assignments, transfers, pledges, leases, covenants, contracts,
promissory notes, releases, grant agreements and other instruments sealed or unsealed, necessary, proper or
incident to any transaction in which the Board engages for the accomplishment of the purposes of the Trust;

E. To employ advisors and agents, such as accountants, appraisers and lawyers as the Board deems necessary;

F. To pay reasonable compensation and expenses to all advisors and agents and to apportion such compensation
between income and principal as the Board deems advisable;

18:2

28



§ 18-6. Acts of Trustees.

G. To apportion receipts and charges between incomes and principal as the Board deems advisable, to amortize
premiums and establish sinking funds for such purpose, and to create reserves for depreciation depletion or
otherwise;

H. To participate in any reorganization, recapitalization, merger or similar transactions; and to give proxies or
powers of attorney with or without power of substitution to vote any securities or certificates of interest; and
to consent to any contract, lease, mortgage, purchase or sale of property, by or between any corporation and
any other corporation or person;

I. To deposit any security with any protective reorganization committee, and to delegate to such committee such
powers and authority with relation thereto as the Board may deem proper and to pay, out of Trust property,
such portion of expenses and compensation of such committee as the Board may deem necessary and
appropriate;

J. To carry property for accounting purposes other than acquisition date values;

K. To borrow money on such terms and conditions and from such sources as the Board deems advisable, to
mortgage and pledge trust assets as collateral, provided that any borrowing of funds in excess of $50,000 shall
first be approved by the Board of Selectmen;

L. To make distributions or divisions of principal in kind;

M. To comprise, attribute, defend, enforce, release, settle or otherwise adjust claims in favor or against the Trust,
including claims for taxes, and to accept any property, either in total or partial satisfaction of any indebtedness
or other obligation, and subject to the provisions of Section 55C, to continue to hold the same for such period
of time as the Board may deem appropriate;

N. To manage or improve real property; and to abandon any property which the Board determined not to be
worth retaining;

O. To hold all or part of the Trust property uninvested for such purposes and for such time as the Board may
deem appropriate; and

P. To extend the time for payment of any obligation to the Trust;

Q. To issue policy goals and statements to serve as guidelines for the Trust;

R. To provide funds for the benefit of low and moderate income households to assist in the acquisition, creation,
preservation, rehabilitation and support of housing affordable for such families; and

S. To exercise such additional powers, if any, as may be set forth in MGL c. 44, § 55C, as it may be amended
from time to time.

A. Except as otherwise provided, any action of the Board of Trustees shall be approved by a majority of those
present and voting at a duly called meeting provided that a quorum is present, and any and all instruments
executed by such majority shall be binding upon the Trust, and shall be conclusive evidence that such action
has been duly authorized. The Trustees may, by instrument executed by all the Trustees, delegate to any
attorney, agent or employee such other powers and duties as they deem advisable, including power to execute
and deliver instruments as fully as the Trustees might themselves and to sign and endorse checks for the
account of the Trustees of the Trust. The Trustees shall not delegate the authority to amend or terminate the
Trust and no such delegation shall be effective. No Trustee shall be required to give bond. No license of court
shall be required to confirm the validity of any transaction entered into by the Trustees with respect to the
Trust estate. No one dealing with the Trustees need inquire concerning the validity of any act of the Trustees
or see to the application of anything paid to or upon the order of the Trustees. No Trustee shall be liable for

18:3

29



§ 18-7. Status of Trust and Board of Trustees.

The Trust is a public employer and the members of the Board are public employees for purposes of General Laws
Chapter 258. The Trust shall be deemed a municipal agency and the members of the Board of Trustees special
municipal employees for purposes of General Laws Chapter 268A, the Conflict of Interest Law. The Trust is a
governmental body for purposes of Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 30A, Sections 18-25, the Open Meeting
Law. The Trust is also a board of the Town for purposes of General Laws Chapter 30B, the Uniform Procurement
Act, and General Laws Chapter 40, Section 15; provided, however, that agreements and conveyances between the
Trust and agencies, boards, commissions, authorities, departments and public instrumentalities of the Town shall
be exempt from said Chapter 30B. Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither the Trustees nor any agent or officer of
the Trust shall have the authority to bind the Town.

§ 18-8. Custodian of funds.

The Town Treasurer shall be the custodian of the Trust's funds and shall maintain separate accounts and records
for said funds. The Treasurer shall invest the Trust's funds in the manner authorized by MGL c. 44, § 55B. Any
income or proceeds received from the investment of unrestricted funds shall be credited to and become part of the
Trust. The yearly approved budget, and any approved budget revisions, will be filed with the Town Treasurer. As
custodian, the Treasurer shall issue checks or transfer monies as directed by the Trustees and approved by the Board
of Selectmen. In addition to the requirements of MGL c. 44, § 55C, the Trust shall comply with all requirements,
if any, of all the funds deposited into the Trust, and shall ensure that restricted funds, and any interest thereon,
are appropriately segregated and reported. The books and records of the Trust shall be audited annually by an
independent auditor in accordance with accepted accounting practices. Cost associated with the independent audit
shall be borne by the Trust. Upon receipt of the audit by the Board of Trustees, a copy shall be provided forthwith
to the Board of Selectmen.

§ 18-9. Funds paid to the Trust.

Notwithstanding any general or special law to the contrary, all moneys paid to the Trust in accordance with
any zoning by-law, exaction fee, or private contribution shall be paid directly into the Trust and need not be
appropriated or accepted and approved into the Trust. General revenues appropriated into the Trust become Trust
property and these funds need not be further appropriated to be expended. All moneys remaining in the Trust at the
end of any fiscal year, whether or not expended by the Board within one year of the date they were appropriated
into the Trust, remain Trust property.

§ 18-10. Taxes.

The Trust is exempt from General Laws Chapters 59 and 62, and from any other provisions concerning payment of
taxes based upon or measured by property or income imposed by the Commonwealth or any subdivision thereto.

§ 18-11. Duration of the Trust.

This Trust shall continue until terminated by a vote of the Brewster Town Meeting. Upon termination of the Trust,
subject to the payment of or making provisions for the payment of all obligations and liabilities of the Trust and
the Trustees, the net assets of the Trust shall be transferred to the Town and held by the Board of Selectmen for

the act, negligence or default of any other Trustee or any employee, agent, or representative of the Trustees
selected with reasonable care, nor for errors in judgment, nor mistakes of law or fact made in good faith nor
in reliance in good faith on advice of counsel nor for other acts or omissions in good faith.

B. In exercising these powers, the Trustees shall recognize the role of the Board of Selectmen or it's designee as
the principal procurement officer under MGL c. 30B, including the bidding and awarding of all contracts.
Where an act of the Trustees requires prior written notice to the Board of Selectmen, notice shall be deemed
given when addressed to the Board of Selectmen.

18:4

30



affordable housing purposes except that any net funds generated pursuant to MGL c. 44B which shall be returned to
the CPA Fund for community housing. In making any such distribution, the Trustees shall, subject to the approval
of the Board of Selectmen, sell all or any portion of the Trust property and distribute the net proceeds thereof or
they may distribute any of the assets in kind to the Board of Selectmen. The powers of the Trustees shall continue
until the affairs of the Trust are concluded.

§ 18-12. Compensation of Trustees.

Trustees shall not receive a salary, stipend, bonus or other means of compensation for their service as a Trustee,
nor shall they be eligible for any benefits from the Town of Brewster. Trustees may be compensated for reasonable
out-of-pocket expenses for travel and other Trust-related expenses. All such out-of-pocket expenses shall be fully
documented with receipts for expenses prior to payment by the Trust.

§ 18-13. Annual report.

The Trustees shall prepare an annual report describing the activities of the Trust on a calendar year basis. The
annual report shall be submitted to the Brewster Board of Selectmen by December 31st of each year and will be
included in the Town's Annual Report. The annual report shall list all financial transactions conducted by the Trust
including all revenues and costs, provide a balance sheet of liabilities and assets of the Trust, list an inventory of
all affordable housing units created, sold, and/or managed by the Trust, and any other pertinent information related
to the business of the Trust.

§ 18-14. Recording; amendments.

The Trustees are hereby authorized to execute a Declaration of Trust and Certificate of Trust for the Trust, to
be recorded with the Barnstable Registry of Deeds and the Barnstable Registry District of the Land Court, as
applicable. The Declaration of Trust may be amended from time to time except as to those provisions specifically
required under MGL c. 44, § 55C and/or this bylaw, by an instrument in writing signed by a majority of the
Trustees and approved at a meeting called for that purpose, and approved by the Board of Selectmen.

§ 18-15. Titles.

The titles to the various Sections herein are for convenience only and are not to be considered part of said Sections
nor shall they affect the meaning or the language of any such Section.

18:5

31



Parameters of Affordable Housing Trust Buydown Program 

Approved by Housing Trust 5.11.23 

 

Proposed Program:  The Affordable Housing Trust may provide up to $50,000* of grant 

assistance for eligible buyers purchasing a home in Brewster. The program, contingent on 

existing funds, is available to households qualifying at up to 80% AMI (Area Median Income) 

who agree to place a permanent affordable housing deed restriction on the home. The program 

is targeted to preserve affordable homes already on the Town’s Subsidized Housing Inventory 

(SHI). The grant funds will reduce, buydown, the purchase price of the home. In extenuating 

circumstances, the Trust may decide to direct funds in connection with a purchase to assist with 

verified, required repairs which will help preserve the home. The grant assistance is provided as 

an interest free loan which is forgivable after 30 years.  

*Amounts over $50,000 may be considered but will require approval of both the Affordable 

Housing Trust and the Select Board. 

 

 

Amount of Grant Assistance: The amount of assistance will be determined on a home-by-home 

basis. The aim is to ensure that SHI home resales are affordable with a sales price set to be 

affordable for a household making 80% AMI. If necessary, the Trust will consider making the 

home affordable to a household at 70% AMI. It is expected that buydown grants will range up 

to $50,000. Amounts over $50,000 may be considered but will require approval of both the 

Affordable Housing Trust and the Select Board. 

 

 

Program Eligibility (from original CPC Buydown Program): 

 First Time Homebuyer, defined as someone who has not owned a home within the past 
3 years. Some exceptions. 

 The household must occupy the property as their principal residence. 

 The property must be located in Brewster.  

 A household cannot have more than $75,000 in assets. 

 The total household income must not exceed 80% of AMI. 
 
 

Maximum Household Income Limits for 2022 

2022 HUD 
Income Limits 

Household 
Size 

1 
Person 

2 
Persons 

3 
Persons 

4 
Persons 

5 
Persons 

6 
Persons 

Affordable 
limits 

80% of AMI 

 
$60,900 

 
$69,600 

 
$78,300 

 
$86,950 

 
$93,950 

 
$100,900 

 
 

32



 
 

Proposed BREWSTER AFFORDABLE HOME BUYERS 
BUYDOWN PROGRAM 

READY BUYER APPLICATION  
 
 
Program:  The Town of Brewster, through Community Preservation Funds, provides up to 
$50,000 of grant assistance for eligible buyers purchasing a home in Brewster. The program, 
contingent on existing funds, is available to households qualifying at 80% AMI (Area Median 
Income) who agree to place a permanent affordable housing deed restriction on the home. The 
grant assistance is provided as an interest free loan which is forgivable after 30 years.  
 
 
Eligibility: 

 First Time Homebuyer, defined as someone who has not owned a home within the 

past 3 years. Some exceptions. 

 The household must occupy the property as their principal residence. 

 The property must be located in Brewster.  

 A household cannot have more than $75,000 in assets. 

 The total household income must not exceed 80% of AMI. 
 
 

Maximum Household Income Limits for 2023 
2023 HUD 

Income Limits 
Household 

Size 
1 

Person 
2 

Persons 
3 

Persons 
4 

Persons 
5 

Persons 
6 

Persons 
Affordable 

limits 
80% of AMI 

 
$64,450 

 
$73,650 

 
$82,850 

 
$92,050 

 
$99,450 

 
$106,800 

 

 
 
For more information and questions, please contact: Jill Scalise, Brewster Housing Coordinator  

at 508-896-3701 x1169 
jscalise@brewster-ma.gov  

33

mailto:jscalise@brewster-ma.gov


Brewster Affordable Home Buyers Buydown Program Ready Buyer Application 
 

 

Ready Buyer Application Checklist 

 

□ Signed application form (ALL adult household members are applicants) 
 

□ Documentation of your income sources and assets (see Required Financial 
Documentation sheet) 

 

□ Mortgage pre-approval letter.  The letter must be from a mortgage lender and conform 
to the “LIP Program Standards for New Mortgage Loans.” (See Appendix 2) 
 

□ Signed agreement on affordability and deed resale restrictions. 
 

□ Signed Application Certification and Consent for Release of Information for ALL adult 
household members. 
 

Brewster Buydown Program Application Process 
 Submit Ready Buyer application with all documentation & mortgage pre-approval letter. 

 After initial eligibility determination, placement on the Brewster Ready Buyer List. 

 When specific home is identified, submit Purchase & Sale agreement for final approval. 

 Property appraisal &/or home inspection will then be required. 

 IF THE HOME BUYER IS DETERMINED BY AN AFFORDABLE RESALE HOUSING LOTTERY 
WHERE BREWSTER BUYDOWN FUNDS HAVE BEEN ADVERTISED (for example by Housing 
Assistance Corporation), DOCUMENTATION FROM THE HOUSING LOTTERY MAY BE USED 
FOR INCOME VERIFICATION AND ELIGIBILITY. 

 Final approval and authorization of funds made by the Affordable Housing Trust. 

 Deed restriction, secondary mortgage, and promissory note signed, and funds released at 
closing. 

 
Return completed application to: 

Brewster Planning Department 
Attn: Jill Scalise, Housing Coordinator 
2198 Main St. Brewster, MA  02631 

 
 

Brewster does not discriminate based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, familial status, and 
handicap (disability). Disabled persons are entitled to request a reasonable accommodation of rules, 
policies, practices, or services, or to request a reasonable modification of the housing, when such 
accommodations or modifications are necessary to afford the disabled person equal opportunity to use 
and enjoy the housing.   

34



1 
 

 

BREWSTER AFFORDABLE HOME BUYERS 
BUYDOWN PROGRAM  

READY BUYER APPLICATION 
 

(All adult household members are considered applicants) 
 
 

Applicant Name:________________________________________________________________ 
 
Address:_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
City/Town:____________________________________State:_______Zip Code:_____________ 
 
E-mail Address:_________________________________________________________________ 
 
Telephone: (Day):__________________________ (Evening):____________________________ 
 
Employer’s Name:________________________________________ Town:_________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
Co-Applicant Name:_____________________________________________________________ 
 
Address:______________________________________________________________________ 
 
City/Town:____________________________________State:_______ Zip Code:____________ 
 
E-mail Address:_________________________________________________________________ 
 
Telephone: (Day):________________________ (Evening):______________________________ 
 
Employer’s Name:________________________________________ Town:_________________ 
 
 

35



Brewster Affordable Home Buyers Buydown Program Ready Buyer Application 
 

2 
 

 
 

Household Members 
 
List all household members including yourself: 
 
 

Name   Date of Birth  Soc. Sec. # Relationship to Applicant 
 
1._______________________________________________________________Self__________ 
 
2.____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
3.____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
4.____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
5.____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
6.____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

 
Gross Annual HOUSEHOLD income: $______________   
 
 
Down Payment Available: $_____________ 
 
 
Are you a first-time homebuyer?             YES □  NO □ 
Someone who has not owned a home in 3 years, a person 55 and older, or a displaced homemaker. 
 
 

Have you completed a certified homebuyer education course? YES □ NO □ 
If so, please attach a copy of your completion certificate.  
 
A certified Home Buyer Education course is strongly recommended. On Cape Cod, the Community 
Development Partnership (CDP) in Eastham and Housing Assistance Corporation (HAC) in Hyannis offer 
these classes. Please see www.capecdp.org; 508-240-7873 or www.haconcape.org; 508-771-5400. You 
can also see ww.chapa.org for a list of courses. 
 

  

36

http://www.capecdp.org/
http://www.haconcape.org/


Brewster Affordable Home Buyers Buydown Program Ready Buyer Application 
 

3 
 

ANNUAL HOUSEHOLD INCOME INFORMATION 
Households must meet certain maximum income limits in order to be eligible to participate in 
the lottery for a home, as outlined in the Lottery Information Package.  Gross annual income is 
income from all sources, including all wages and salaries prior to deductions, overtime pay, 
commissions, tips, fees and bonuses, and other compensation for personal services, net business 
income, interest/dividend income, Social Security, Supplemental Security Income, pension 
payments, disability income, unemployment compensation, alimony/child support, and 
veterans’ benefits, for all adult household members over the age of 18, unless the member is a 
full-time student.  Income for full-time students who are the head of household or spouse must 
be counted in annual income. See APPENDIX 1:  Income and Assets for more details. 
 

Please attach all third party documentation for your sources of income 
(see Required Financial Documentation sheet for detailed information). 

 
Annual Income (Applicant):  Gross Income for the past 12 months: $_____________________ 
Employer Name: ________________________________________________________________ 

Employer Address: ______________________________________________________________ 

Phone: __________________ Position: ______________________________________________  

Wage/Salary per week before taxes and withholding: $_________________ 

Additional Income from other source(s): 

Source:________________________________________________________________________  

Income per month: $____________________ 

Source:________________________________________________________________________  

Income per month: $____________________ 

 

Annual Income (Co-Applicant):  Gross Income for the past 12 months: $__________________ 

Employer Name: ________________________________________________________________ 

Employer Address: ______________________________________________________________ 

Phone: __________________ Position: _____________________________________________ 

Wage/Salary per week before taxes and withholding: $_________________ 

Additional Income from other source(s): 

Source:_______________________________________________________________________  

Income per month: $_____________________ 

Source:_______________________________________________________________________  

Income per month: $_____________________ 

Note: If any other adult household members have income, please attach a separate sheet of 

paper with their income information as described above.  Third party documentation is 

required. 

37



Brewster Affordable Home Buyers Buydown Program Ready Buyer Application 
 

4 
 

HOUSEHOLD ASSET INFORMATION 
Please complete the following asset information for all household members.  Assets to be 
included:  cash, savings and checking accounts, stocks, bonds and other forms of capital 
investment, excluding equity accounts in homeownership programs or state-assisted public 
housing escrow accounts.  Do not include the value of personal property such as furniture and 
automobiles.  See APPENDIX 1:  Income and Assets for more details, and Required Financial 
Documentation for verification documentation needed. 
 
 

Name on Account: ______________________________________________________________ 

Bank Name and Address: _________________________________________________________ 

Savings Account Number: ________________________  

Recent Balance: $_______________________________ 

Checking Account Number: _______________________  

Recent Balance: $_______________________________ 

Other (e.g. Certificate of Deposit) Account Number: ______________  

Balance: $______________ 

 

Name on Account: ______________________________________________________________ 

Bank Name and Address: _________________________________________________________ 

Savings Account Number: ________________________  

Recent Balance: $_______________________________ 

Checking Account Number: _______________________  

Recent Balance: $_______________________________ 

Other (e.g. Certificate of Deposit) Account Number: ______________  

Balance: $______________ 

 

Stocks and bonds, other liquid assets: 

Description:____________________________________________ Value: $______________ 

Description:____________________________________________ Value: $______________ 

Description:____________________________________________ Value: $______________ 

 

Total Household Assets: $____________________ 

 
Note:  If any other household members have assets from additional sources, please attach a 
separate sheet of paper for each with their asset information as described above. 

 

38



Brewster Affordable Home Buyers Buydown Program Ready Buyer Application 
 

5 
 

 
 
 

AFFIRMATIVE MARKETTING 
 
Please complete the following section to assist us in fulfilling affirmative marketing requirements.  
Responses will not affect your application. 
 
Household Race (Head of Household): 
 
□ Caucasian 

 
□ American Indian/ Alaskan Native 
 
□ African American 
 
□ Hispanic/Latino 

 
□ Cape Verdean 
 
□ Asian/Pacific Islander 
 

  

39



Brewster Affordable Home Buyers Buydown Program Ready Buyer Application 
 

6 
 

BREWSTER AFFORDABLE HOME BUYERS 
BUYDOWN PROGRAM 

    READY BUYER APPLICATION 
 

This form must be signed by all adult household members and returned with your 
application. 

 

Affordability and Resale Restriction Certification: 
 
I/We have read the summary of resale restrictions in the Information Package and agree to the restriction.  
I/We have been advised that a copy of the Deed Rider governing resale of the affordable homes is 
available at the Brewster Town Administrator’s Office for my/our further review and that I/we may 
request a copy to be sent to me/us or my/our lender.  I/We also understand that, when I/we are ready to 
purchase a unit, a full copy of the Deed Rider will be provided to me/us.  

 
_____________________________________________              ________________________ 
Applicant Signature       Date 
 
_____________________________________________        _________________________ 
Co- Applicant Signature      Date 
 

 

Applicant Certification and Consent to Release Information: 
 
PLEASE CHECK THE FOLLOWING ITEMS THAT APPLY TO YOU: 
 
□  I/We certify that the information in this application and in support of this application is true and 

correct to the best of my/our knowledge and belief under full penalty of perjury.  I/We 
understand that perjury will result in disqualification from further consideration in this program. 

 
□ I/We understand that the use of this application is for a potential grant to purchase an 

affordable home in Brewster, and does not guarantee an offer. 
 
Your signature(s) below gives consent to the Town of Brewster, to verify information provided in this 
application.  No applications will be considered complete unless signed and dated by the Applicant and 
Co-Applicant (if any). 
 

_____________________________________________              ________________________ 
Applicant Signature       Date 
 
_____________________________________________        _________________________ 
Co- Applicant Signature      Date 
 

40



Brewster Affordable Home Buyers Buydown Program Ready Buyer Application 
 

7 
 

 
Required Financial Documentation & Verification Sheet 

 
 

□ Two months of most recent, consecutive paystubs for all working members of the 
household age 18 years and older.  

 

□ Federal Tax Returns (1040) from the last 3 years. Include W-2 and 1099-R forms. 
 

□ Verification of child support (copy of child support order, etc.) 
 

□ Verification of any other household income, ie: Social Security, SSDI, SSI, VA benefits, 
unemployment benefits, public assistance, etc. You may provide a copy of the official 
statement of monthly amount received for the present year.  
 

□ Savings account statement- submit the three most recent bank statement copies 
 

□ Checking account statement- submit the three most recent bank statement copies 
 

□ Verification of student status for each child 18 years of age or older who is a full time 
student. 
 

□ Mortgage pre-approval letter.  The letter must be from a mortgage lender and conform 
to the “LIP Program Standards for New Mortgage Loans.” (Appendix 2) 
 
 

 
  

41



Brewster Affordable Home Buyers Buydown Program Ready Buyer Application 
 

8 
 

APPENDIX 1:  Income and Assets  
INCOME: 
Income Limit: Total household annual income must be at/below the 80% Barnstable County Median 
Income limits, as adjusted for household size.  

 
Maximum Household Income Limits (Barnstable MSA) for 2023 

2023 HUD 
Income Limits 

Household 
Size 

1 
Person 

2 
Persons 

3 
Persons 

4 
Persons 

5 
Persons 

6 
Persons 

Affordable 
limits 

80% of AMI 

 
$64,450 

 
$73,650 

 
$82,850 

 
$92,050 

 
$99,450 

 
$106,800 

 
 
Annual Household Gross Income means all income, from all sources, of all current adult household 
members for the 12-month period following application.  
Annual income includes but is not limited to the following: 
• The full amount, before ANY payroll deductions, of wages and salaries, overtime pay, commissions, 
fees, tips and bonuses, and other compensation for personal services 
• Net income from the operation of a business or profession 
• Interest, dividends, and other net income of any kind rom real or personal property 
• Payments from Social Security, annuities, insurance policies, retirement funds, pensions, disability or 
death benefits, and other similar types of period receipts 
• Payments in lieu of earnings such as unemployment and disability compensation, worker’s 
compensation and severance pay 
• Welfare assistance payments 
• Alimony and child support 
• Regular pay, special pay, and allowances of a member of the Armed Forces 

ASSETS: 
Asset Limit: Total household assets cannot exceed $75,000 
Household Assets include the following: 
• Cash in savings accounts, checking accounts and safety deposit boxes, etc., certificates of deposit, 
bonds, stocks, treasury bills, mutual funds and money market accounts 
• Revocable trusts. 
• Equity in rental property or other capital investments 
• Retirement plans are included when the holder has access to the funds, even though a penalty may be 
assessed. Retirement funds are NOT included if amounts can only be withdrawn if upon termination of 
employment or retirement 
• Cash value of life insurance policies available to the applicant before death. 
• Personal property held as an investment (this includes gems, jewelry, coin collections, or antique cars 
held as investments; personal jewelry is NOT considered an asset) 
• Lump sum receipts or one-time receipts. (i.e. inheritance, capital gains, one-time lottery winnings, 
victim’s restitution, settlements on insurance claims (including health and accident insurance, worker’s 
compensation, and personal or property losses), and any other amounts that are not intended as 
periodic payments. 
• A mortgage or deed of trust held by an applicant. 
Household assets do not include: 
• Personal property. (clothing, furniture, cars, wedding ring and other jewelry that is not held as an 
investment, vehicles specially equipped for persons with disabilities) 
• Term life insurance policies. (i.e. where there is no cash value) 

42



Brewster Affordable Home Buyers Buydown Program Ready Buyer Application 
 

9 
 

• Equity in the cooperative unit in which the applicant lives. 
• Assets that are part of an active business. Business DOES NOT include rental of properties that are held 
as investments unless such properties are the applicant’s main source of income. 
• Assets that are not effectively owned by the applicant 
Assets disposed of for less than fair market value: Applicants must declare whether an asset has been 
disposed of for less than fair market value during the two years preceding application. If an asset has 
been disposed of for less than fair market value, the amount counted as an asset is the difference 
between the cash value and the amount actually received. 
 

 

 

APPENDIX 2:  LIP (Local Initiative Program) Program Standards for 
New Mortgage Loans 
 
 

 The loan must be a fully amortizing fixed rate mortgage with a down payment of at least 3%, at 
least half of which must come from the buyer’s own funds. 

 The loan must be made by an institutional lender. Loans from private parties are not allowed. 

 The loan must have a fixed rate through the full term of the mortgage that is a current fair 
market interest rate. 

 The loan can have no more than 2 points. 

 The buyer’s monthly housing costs (inclusive of principal, interest, property taxes, hazard 
insurance, private mortgage insurance and condominium or homeowner association fees) may 
not exceed 38% of the buyer’s monthly gross income. 

 Non-household members shall not be permitted as co-signers of the mortgage.  
 
 
 

APPENDIX 3: Summary of Affordable Housing Deed Restriction 

An affordable housing deed is a legal document recorded at the Registry of Deeds that specifies the 

resale, refinance and leasing provisions for the referenced property. The deed restriction ensures that 

the unit remains affordable for future purchasers of the property. It is strongly recommended that 

purchasers of a deed restricted affordable home review the deed restriction with their attorney and 

lender prior to closing.  

Here is a general description of the deed restriction: 

 The property must be the owner’s principal residence. 

 The deed rider restricts the resale price of the property. The rider includes a formula to calculate 

the future maximum resale price based on the Area Median Income at the time of resale. 

 Owners of a deed restricted home must notify the monitoring agent, the Town of Brewster, in 

writing of their intention to sell or convey the home.  

 Owners of a deed restricted affordable home cannot rent, lease, refinance or encumber the 

home without prior written consent of the monitoring agent, the Town of Brewster. 

 

43



 

Town of Brewster 
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
Fax: (508) 896-8089 

 
 
 
June 5, 2023 
 
Faythe Ellis, Chair 
Community Preservation Committee 
2198 Main Street 
Brewster, MA 02631 
 
Dear Ms. Ellis, 
 
 On behalf of the Town of Brewster Select Board, I am pleased to send you this Letter of Support 

for the Affordable Housing Trust’s Community Preservation Grant request of $250,000 to manage the 

Brewster Affordable Buydown Program.  This program, initiated in 2007, has assisted Brewster first time 

homebuyers in purchasing affordable homes in Brewster. All Buydown homes are required to have an 

affordable deed rider in perpetuity.   

One key economic development goal, outlined in the Town’s Vision Plan, draft Local 

Comprehensive Plan, and Housing Production Plan, and one of the greatest threats facing the local 

economy, is the lack of attainable and affordable housing in Brewster.  The Buydown Program addresses 

this housing need. Over the past 16 years the program, supported by Brewster residents allocating 

$360,000 in CPA funds, has aided 12 households in purchasing affordable Brewster homes. The funds 

have also enabled the Town to retain homes on the Town’s Subsidized Housing Inventory, protecting an 

important asset in a difficult housing environment. 

 
When the Buydown program was first developed, Brewster did not have a municipal housing 

trust. The Community Preservation Committee (CPC) took initiative, developed the Buydown program, 

and demonstrated the program’s effectiveness in meeting an affordable housing need. The Select Board 

appreciates the ongoing dialogue, communication, and coordination between the CPC and Housing 

Trust in determining the value and best path forward for this program. The Select Board supports the 

continuation of the Buydown Program, the $250,000 in CPA funding request, and the management by 

the Housing Trust. Thank you for the fine work of the Community Preservation Committee. 

 
 
       Sincerely, 
 
 
        

Select Board Chair     

Office of: 
Select Board 

Town Administrator 
 
 

44



 

 

 

 

11. Buydown CPC Application 

45



3 

Community Preservation Committee Application rev. 10/17/22 

 

APPLICATION FOR COMMUNITY PRESERVATION ACT FUNDING 

 

 

Date Application Submitted:   

Name of Project Applicant:   

Name of Co-Applicant(s), if applicable:   

Name of Contact Person:   

Contact Person’s Mailing Address:   

Contact Person’s Daytime Phone Number:   

Contact Person’s email Address:   

Proposed Project Name:   

Project Address (or assessor’s parcel ID):   

Project Synopsis: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Category:   ☐ Open Space      ☐ Historic Preservation      ☐ Recreation     ☐ Community Housing  

 

 

CPA funding requested $ ______________                  Total Cost of Proposed Project $   

  

The Brewster Affordable Housing Trust's (BAHT) Affordable Buydown Program is a continuation of the 
Brewster Affordable Homebuyers Buy Down Program which began in 2007 and, over the past 16 years, 
expended $360,000 to assist 12 households in purchasing affordable homes in Brewster. Funding is now 
exhausted. When the Buy Down program was first developed by the Community Preservation Committee 
(CPC), Brewster did not have a municipal housing trust. Going forward, the BAHT will manage the Buydown 
Program which may provide up to $50,000 of grant assistance to first-time affordable homebuyers purchasing a 
home in Brewster. Eligible households may make up to 80% of the Area Median Income (AMI) and must agree 
to place a permanent deed restriction on the home. The grant funds reduce, buy down, the purchase price of 
the home to make the home affordable and are provided as an interest-free loan, forgivable after 30 years. The 
program is targeted to preserve affordable homes already on the Town's Subsidized Housing Inventory (SHI).

46



4 

Community Preservation Committee Application rev. 10/17/22 

 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 

Please describe your project, answering all of the following questions in the order presented. Applications 

will be considered incomplete if all requested information is not provided. Include supporting materials 

(maps, diagrams, photos, etc.). Please number pages of application. 

 

Form fields are provided after each question for your convenience.  If you need more room, you may 

provide additional information via separate documents/attachments at the end of the document. Please 

do not provide any documentation via on-line links, as the committee will not be checking for updates. Be 

as concise as possible. 

 

1. Project Description: Describe the proposed project. Is this part of a larger project or an ongoing project? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2. For Historic Preservation projects: Attach proof of listing on the State Register of Historic Places or a 

letter from the Brewster Historical Commission indicating that the resource has been determined to be 

significant in the history, archaeology, architecture, or culture of Brewster. Please note that rehabilitation 

projects must comply with the Secretary of the Interior Standards for Treatment of Historic Properties. 

Additional information and analysis will be needed for projects submitted by churches/religious 

organizations to determine if they comply with the SJC’s Caplan vs. Town of Acton decision. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3. CPA Goals/Criteria: Describe how this project accomplishes the goals and objectives of the CPA and the 

Town of Brewster Community Preservation Plan FY23-27 (refer to the attached general and issue-specific 

criteria and identify which of these apply to the project). 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

47

klambert
Cross-out
A



Buydown Grant Narrative: Project Description 

 

 

1.  Project Description  

(This response is larger than can be read when printing the fillable application) 

The Brewster Affordable Housing Trust's (BAHT) Affordable Buydown Program is a 
continuation of the Brewster Affordable Homebuyers Buy Down Program which began 
in 2007 and, over the past 16 years, expended $360,000 to assist 12 households in 
purchasing affordable homes in Brewster. The Buydown program was first developed 
by the Community Preservation Committee and provided up to $30,000 of assistance to 
reduce the purchase price of the property and make the home affordable for a first-time 
home buyer making up to 80% of the AMI. The Buy Down award, provided at closing, 
took the form of a 30 year forgivable interest-free loan, and also required an permanent 
affordable deed restriction to be placed on the property. A promissory note was signed, 
and both a municipal lien and affordable deed rider were recorded on the property. 
 
Funding for the original Buy Down Program is now exhausted. Today Brewster has a 
municipal housing trust. In January 2023 the CPC and BAHT held a joint meeting where 
they discussed several Brewster housing initiatives including the Buy Down Program. It 
was decided that, going forward, the BAHT would manage the Buydown Program. After 
evaluating the program and current increasing mortgage rates, the initial limit of grant 
assistance was increased $50,000 for first-time affordable homebuyers purchasing a 
home in Brewster. The actual amount of assistance will be determined on a home-by-
home basis. Amounts above $50,000 may be considered but would require Select 
Board approval. The aim is to ensure that SHI home resales are affordable with a sales 
price set to be affordable for a household making 80% AMI.  
 
The program, in form, continues as previously. Homebuyers must agree to place a 
permanent affordable deed restriction on the home. The grant funds will reduce, 
buydown, the purchase price of the home and be provided as an interest free loan, 
forgivable after 30 years.  
 
The program is targeted to preserve affordable homes already on the Town's 
Subsidized Housing Inventory (SHI). Some of the Town's older deed restrictions can be 
lost if an eligible purchaser cannot be found. Furthermore, the deed rider resale 
formulas may result in a price that may not be affordable to low-to-moderate income 
households earning up to 80%AMI. Occasionally, a home may be in disrepair. Buydown 
funds have been helpful in situations that require considerable repairs to make the 
home functional and livable. 
 
Please see Attachment A: "Parameters of Affordable Housing Trust Buydown Program" 
for a more complete description of the program. Attachment B provides the Buydown 
Program application. 

48



5 

Community Preservation Committee Application rev. 10/17/22 

4. Community Benefits: What are the community benefits of the project?  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5. Community Support: What is the nature and level of support for this project?  Include letters of support 

and any petitions. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6. Timeline: What is the schedule for project implementation, including a timeline for all milestones? Please 

identify any special timing considerations for the project’s implementation.  If this is part of a larger project, 

is it phased? What is the timeline for the entire project? 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7. Credentials: What are the qualifications and relevant experience of those undertaking the project? 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

49



6 

Community Preservation Committee Application rev. 10/17/22 

8. Budget/Need for Public Funds: What is the total budget (sources of funds and uses/expenses) for the 

project and schedule for expenditure of CPA funds? All sources of funds and expenses must be clearly 

identified. Provide the basis for cost estimates whenever possible. (Note: CPA funds may not be used for 

maintenance.) 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

If this is part of a larger project, what is the budget for the entire project (sources of funds and 

expenses/uses)? 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Clearly identify what additional funding sources are available, committed, or under consideration and why 

public funding would be appropriate. Include copies of commitment letters, if available, and describe any 

other attempts to secure funding for this project. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Provide the most recent audited financial report or if none available, an applicant generated financial report 

that includes a balance sheet and operating budget. Town-sponsored projects must demonstrate why the 

project cannot be funded through the Department’s or Committee’s budget. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

50



7 

Community Preservation Committee Application rev. 10/17/22 

9. Maintenance: If ongoing maintenance is required for your project, who will be responsible for maintenance 

and how will it be funded? 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10. Site Control and Appraisal: If the project involves acquisition of real property, provide evidence of site 

control (deed, purchase and sale, option, etc.). In addition, provide an appraisal of the property’s value by a 

state licensed appraiser using customary appraising techniques. The CPA does not allow funding for 

acquisitions if the acquisition price is greater than appraised value. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

51



8 

Community Preservation Committee Application rev. 10/17/22 

Town of Brewster Community Preservation Committee 
CATEGORY SPECIFIC CRITERIA 

(Identify which of the following criteria apply to your project.) 

 

Open Space Proposals 

 

 Meets one or more of the Open Space goals listed in Town of Brewster Community Preservation Plan 

FY23-27  

 Permanently protect important wildlife habitat, including areas of significance for biodiversity, 

diversity of geological features and types of vegetation, contain a habitat type that is in danger of 

vanishing from Brewster or preserve habitat for threatened or endangered species of plants or animals.  

 Provide opportunities for passive recreation and environmental education.  

 Enhance or protect wildlife corridors, promote connectivity of habitat and prevent fragmentation of 

habitats.  

 Provide connections with existing trails or potential trail linkages.  

 Preserve scenic views or border a scenic road. 

 Protect drinking water quantity and quality.  

 Provide flood control/storage.  

 Preserve important surface water bodies, including wetlands, vernal pools or riparian zones. 

 Preserve priority parcels in the Town’s Open Space Plan/maximize the amount of open land owned by 

the Town of Brewster. 

 Historical Preservation Proposals  

 MANDATORY: Must be on the State Register of Historic Places or have a letter from the Brewster 

Historical Commission indicating that the resource has been determined to be significant in the history, 

archaeology, architecture, or culture of Brewster. 

 MANDATORY: Project must meet Secretary of the Interior Standards for rehabilitation and/or 

restoration of Historic Preservation Properties. 

 MANDATORY IF REQUEST IS FROM A CHURCH/RELIGIOUS ORGANIZATION: The 

project must satisfy the analysis outlined by the SJC’s Caplan vs. Town of Acton decision. 

 Meets one or more of the Historical Preservation goals listed in Town of Brewster Community 

Preservation Plan FY23-27  

 Protect, preserve, enhance, restore and/or rehabilitate historic, cultural, architectural or archaeological 

resources of significance, especially those that are threatened.  

 Protect, preserve, enhance, restore and/or rehabilitate town-owned properties, features or resources of 

historical significance.  

 Protect, preserve, enhance, restore and/or rehabilitate the historical function of a property or site;  

 Demonstrate a public benefit and/or public access, or  

 Otherwise provide permanent protection for maintaining the historic resource. 

 Project site should not be privately owned unless there is demonstrable public access and benefit. 

Community Housing Proposals  

 Meets one or more of the Community Housing goals listed in Town of Brewster Community 

Preservation Plan FY23-27  

 Increase the supply of year-round affordable rental housing for all types of households, such as young 

singles and couples, families, and seniors. 

 Build support for addressing housing needs through partnerships with conservation groups and non-

profit and for-profit developers. 

 Create housing that is affordable and appropriate for very low-income seniors and people with 

disabilities. 

 Increase local capacity to plan, advocate for, and create affordable housing, preserve the affordability 

and condition of existing affordable units, and monitor affordable housing restrictions. 

52

https://portal.laserfiche.com/Portal/DocView.aspx?id=176751&repo=r-153f9d98
https://portal.laserfiche.com/Portal/DocView.aspx?id=176751&repo=r-153f9d98
https://portal.laserfiche.com/Portal/DocView.aspx?id=176751&repo=r-153f9d98
https://portal.laserfiche.com/Portal/DocView.aspx?id=176751&repo=r-153f9d98
https://portal.laserfiche.com/Portal/DocView.aspx?id=176751&repo=r-153f9d98
https://portal.laserfiche.com/Portal/DocView.aspx?id=176751&repo=r-153f9d98


9 

Community Preservation Committee Application rev. 10/17/22 

 Increase the variety of mixed-income housing choices in Brewster, particularly in or near commercial 

areas in order to support Brewster’s economy and accommodate household growth. 

 Provide at least 10% of Brewster’s year-round housing units as affordable housing in order to meet 

local and regional needs. 

 Ensure long term affordability. 

 Commit to a resident selection process that promotes diversity and does not include a local preference. 

 

Recreation Proposals  

 Meets one or more of the Recreation goals listed in Town of Brewster Community Preservation Plan 

FY23-27  

 Support multiple active and passive recreation uses.  

 Serve a significant number of residents and visitors.  

 Expand the range of recreational opportunities available to all ages of Brewster residents and visitors.  

 Benefit other Brewster committees providing recreational resources to residents. 

 Promote the use of alternative corridors that provide safe and healthy non-motorized transportation. 

 Promotes or enhances accessibility.  (Please elaborate in application.)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

53

https://portal.laserfiche.com/Portal/DocView.aspx?id=176751&repo=r-153f9d98
https://portal.laserfiche.com/Portal/DocView.aspx?id=176751&repo=r-153f9d98


 

 

Attachment A 

Parameters of Affordable Housing Trust 

Buydown Program 

  

54



Parameters of Affordable Housing Trust Buydown Program 

Approved by Housing Trust 5.11.23 

 

Proposed Program:  The Affordable Housing Trust may provide up to $50,000* of grant 

assistance for eligible buyers purchasing a home in Brewster. The program, contingent on 

existing funds, is available to households qualifying at up to 80% AMI (Area Median Income) 

who agree to place a permanent affordable housing deed restriction on the home. The program 

is targeted to preserve affordable homes already on the Town’s Subsidized Housing Inventory 

(SHI). The grant funds will reduce, buydown, the purchase price of the home. In extenuating 

circumstances, the Trust may decide to direct funds in connection with a purchase to assist with 

verified, required repairs which will help preserve the home. The grant assistance is provided as 

an interest free loan which is forgivable after 30 years.  

*Amounts over $50,000 may be considered but will require approval of both the Affordable 

Housing Trust and the Select Board. 

 

 

Amount of Grant Assistance: The amount of assistance will be determined on a home-by-home 

basis. The aim is to ensure that SHI home resales are affordable with a sales price set to be 

affordable for a household making 80% AMI. If necessary, the Trust will consider making the 

home affordable to a household at 70% AMI. It is expected that buydown grants will range up 

to $50,000. Amounts over $50,000 may be considered but will require approval of both the 

Affordable Housing Trust and the Select Board. 

 

 

Program Eligibility (from original CPC Buydown Program): 

 First Time Homebuyer, defined as someone who has not owned a home within the past 
3 years. Some exceptions. 

 The household must occupy the property as their principal residence. 

 The property must be located in Brewster.  

 A household cannot have more than $75,000 in assets. 

 The total household income must not exceed 80% of AMI. 
 
 

Maximum Household Income Limits for 2023 

2023 HUD 
Income Limits 

Household 
Size 

1 
Person 

2 
Persons 

3 
Persons 

4 
Persons 

5 
Persons 

6 
Persons 

80% AMI  $64,450 
 

$73,650 
 

$ 82,850 
 

$92,050 
 

$99,450 
 

$106,800 
 

 

55



 

Attachment B 

Buydown Program Application 

 

56



 
 

Proposed BREWSTER AFFORDABLE HOME BUYERS 
BUYDOWN PROGRAM 

READY BUYER APPLICATION  
 
 
Program:  The Town of Brewster, through Community Preservation Funds, provides up to 
$50,000 of grant assistance for eligible buyers purchasing a home in Brewster. The program, 
contingent on existing funds, is available to households qualifying at 80% AMI (Area Median 
Income) who agree to place a permanent affordable housing deed restriction on the home. The 
grant assistance is provided as an interest free loan which is forgivable after 30 years.  
 
 
Eligibility: 

 First Time Homebuyer, defined as someone who has not owned a home within the 

past 3 years. Some exceptions. 

 The household must occupy the property as their principal residence. 

 The property must be located in Brewster.  

 A household cannot have more than $75,000 in assets. 

 The total household income must not exceed 80% of AMI. 
 
 

Maximum Household Income Limits for 2023 
2023 HUD 

Income Limits 
Household 

Size 
1 

Person 
2 

Persons 
3 

Persons 
4 

Persons 
5 

Persons 
6 

Persons 
Affordable 

limits 
80% of AMI 

 
$64,450 

 
$73,650 

 
$82,850 

 
$92,050 

 
$99,450 

 
$106,800 

 

 
 
For more information and questions, please contact: Jill Scalise, Brewster Housing Coordinator  

at 508-896-3701 x1169 
jscalise@brewster-ma.gov  

57

mailto:jscalise@brewster-ma.gov


Brewster Affordable Home Buyers Buydown Program Ready Buyer Application 
 

 

Ready Buyer Application Checklist 

 

□ Signed application form (ALL adult household members are applicants) 
 

□ Documentation of your income sources and assets (see Required Financial 
Documentation sheet) 

 

□ Mortgage pre-approval letter.  The letter must be from a mortgage lender and conform 
to the “LIP Program Standards for New Mortgage Loans.” (See Appendix 2) 
 

□ Signed agreement on affordability and deed resale restrictions. 
 

□ Signed Application Certification and Consent for Release of Information for ALL adult 
household members. 
 

Brewster Buydown Program Application Process 
 Submit Ready Buyer application with all documentation & mortgage pre-approval letter. 

 After initial eligibility determination, placement on the Brewster Ready Buyer List. 

 When specific home is identified, submit Purchase & Sale agreement for final approval. 

 Property appraisal &/or home inspection will then be required. 

 IF THE HOME BUYER IS DETERMINED BY AN AFFORDABLE RESALE HOUSING LOTTERY 
WHERE BREWSTER BUYDOWN FUNDS HAVE BEEN ADVERTISED (for example by Housing 
Assistance Corporation), DOCUMENTATION FROM THE HOUSING LOTTERY MAY BE USED 
FOR INCOME VERIFICATION AND ELIGIBILITY. 

 Final approval and authorization of funds made by the Affordable Housing Trust. 

 Deed restriction, secondary mortgage, and promissory note signed, and funds released at 
closing. 

 
Return completed application to: 

Brewster Planning Department 
Attn: Jill Scalise, Housing Coordinator 
2198 Main St. Brewster, MA  02631 

 
 

Brewster does not discriminate based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, familial status, and 
handicap (disability). Disabled persons are entitled to request a reasonable accommodation of rules, 
policies, practices, or services, or to request a reasonable modification of the housing, when such 
accommodations or modifications are necessary to afford the disabled person equal opportunity to use 
and enjoy the housing.   

58



1 
 

 

BREWSTER AFFORDABLE HOME BUYERS 
BUYDOWN PROGRAM  

READY BUYER APPLICATION 
 

(All adult household members are considered applicants) 
 
 

Applicant Name:________________________________________________________________ 
 
Address:_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
City/Town:____________________________________State:_______Zip Code:_____________ 
 
E-mail Address:_________________________________________________________________ 
 
Telephone: (Day):__________________________ (Evening):____________________________ 
 
Employer’s Name:________________________________________ Town:_________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
Co-Applicant Name:_____________________________________________________________ 
 
Address:______________________________________________________________________ 
 
City/Town:____________________________________State:_______ Zip Code:____________ 
 
E-mail Address:_________________________________________________________________ 
 
Telephone: (Day):________________________ (Evening):______________________________ 
 
Employer’s Name:________________________________________ Town:_________________ 
 
 

59



Brewster Affordable Home Buyers Buydown Program Ready Buyer Application 
 

2 
 

 
 

Household Members 
 
List all household members including yourself: 
 
 

Name   Date of Birth  Soc. Sec. # Relationship to Applicant 
 
1._______________________________________________________________Self__________ 
 
2.____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
3.____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
4.____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
5.____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
6.____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

 
Gross Annual HOUSEHOLD income: $______________   
 
 
Down Payment Available: $_____________ 
 
 
Are you a first-time homebuyer?             YES □  NO □ 
Someone who has not owned a home in 3 years, a person 55 and older, or a displaced homemaker. 
 
 

Have you completed a certified homebuyer education course? YES □ NO □ 
If so, please attach a copy of your completion certificate.  
 
A certified Home Buyer Education course is strongly recommended. On Cape Cod, the Community 
Development Partnership (CDP) in Eastham and Housing Assistance Corporation (HAC) in Hyannis offer 
these classes. Please see www.capecdp.org; 508-240-7873 or www.haconcape.org; 508-771-5400. You 
can also see ww.chapa.org for a list of courses. 
 

  

60

http://www.capecdp.org/
http://www.haconcape.org/


Brewster Affordable Home Buyers Buydown Program Ready Buyer Application 
 

3 
 

ANNUAL HOUSEHOLD INCOME INFORMATION 
Households must meet certain maximum income limits in order to be eligible to participate in 
the lottery for a home, as outlined in the Lottery Information Package.  Gross annual income is 
income from all sources, including all wages and salaries prior to deductions, overtime pay, 
commissions, tips, fees and bonuses, and other compensation for personal services, net business 
income, interest/dividend income, Social Security, Supplemental Security Income, pension 
payments, disability income, unemployment compensation, alimony/child support, and 
veterans’ benefits, for all adult household members over the age of 18, unless the member is a 
full-time student.  Income for full-time students who are the head of household or spouse must 
be counted in annual income. See APPENDIX 1:  Income and Assets for more details. 
 

Please attach all third party documentation for your sources of income 
(see Required Financial Documentation sheet for detailed information). 

 
Annual Income (Applicant):  Gross Income for the past 12 months: $_____________________ 
Employer Name: ________________________________________________________________ 

Employer Address: ______________________________________________________________ 

Phone: __________________ Position: ______________________________________________  

Wage/Salary per week before taxes and withholding: $_________________ 

Additional Income from other source(s): 

Source:________________________________________________________________________  

Income per month: $____________________ 

Source:________________________________________________________________________  

Income per month: $____________________ 

 

Annual Income (Co-Applicant):  Gross Income for the past 12 months: $__________________ 

Employer Name: ________________________________________________________________ 

Employer Address: ______________________________________________________________ 

Phone: __________________ Position: _____________________________________________ 

Wage/Salary per week before taxes and withholding: $_________________ 

Additional Income from other source(s): 

Source:_______________________________________________________________________  

Income per month: $_____________________ 

Source:_______________________________________________________________________  

Income per month: $_____________________ 

Note: If any other adult household members have income, please attach a separate sheet of 

paper with their income information as described above.  Third party documentation is 

required. 

61



Brewster Affordable Home Buyers Buydown Program Ready Buyer Application 
 

4 
 

HOUSEHOLD ASSET INFORMATION 
Please complete the following asset information for all household members.  Assets to be 
included:  cash, savings and checking accounts, stocks, bonds and other forms of capital 
investment, excluding equity accounts in homeownership programs or state-assisted public 
housing escrow accounts.  Do not include the value of personal property such as furniture and 
automobiles.  See APPENDIX 1:  Income and Assets for more details, and Required Financial 
Documentation for verification documentation needed. 
 
 

Name on Account: ______________________________________________________________ 

Bank Name and Address: _________________________________________________________ 

Savings Account Number: ________________________  

Recent Balance: $_______________________________ 

Checking Account Number: _______________________  

Recent Balance: $_______________________________ 

Other (e.g. Certificate of Deposit) Account Number: ______________  

Balance: $______________ 

 

Name on Account: ______________________________________________________________ 

Bank Name and Address: _________________________________________________________ 

Savings Account Number: ________________________  

Recent Balance: $_______________________________ 

Checking Account Number: _______________________  

Recent Balance: $_______________________________ 

Other (e.g. Certificate of Deposit) Account Number: ______________  

Balance: $______________ 

 

Stocks and bonds, other liquid assets: 

Description:____________________________________________ Value: $______________ 

Description:____________________________________________ Value: $______________ 

Description:____________________________________________ Value: $______________ 

 

Total Household Assets: $____________________ 

 
Note:  If any other household members have assets from additional sources, please attach a 
separate sheet of paper for each with their asset information as described above. 

 

62



Brewster Affordable Home Buyers Buydown Program Ready Buyer Application 
 

5 
 

 
 
 

AFFIRMATIVE MARKETTING 
 
Please complete the following section to assist us in fulfilling affirmative marketing requirements.  
Responses will not affect your application. 
 
Household Race (Head of Household): 
 
□ Caucasian 

 
□ American Indian/ Alaskan Native 
 
□ African American 
 
□ Hispanic/Latino 

 
□ Cape Verdean 
 
□ Asian/Pacific Islander 
 

  

63



Brewster Affordable Home Buyers Buydown Program Ready Buyer Application 
 

6 
 

BREWSTER AFFORDABLE HOME BUYERS 
BUYDOWN PROGRAM 

    READY BUYER APPLICATION 
 

This form must be signed by all adult household members and returned with your 
application. 

 

Affordability and Resale Restriction Certification: 
 
I/We have read the summary of resale restrictions in the Information Package and agree to the restriction.  
I/We have been advised that a copy of the Deed Rider governing resale of the affordable homes is 
available at the Brewster Town Administrator’s Office for my/our further review and that I/we may 
request a copy to be sent to me/us or my/our lender.  I/We also understand that, when I/we are ready to 
purchase a unit, a full copy of the Deed Rider will be provided to me/us.  

 
_____________________________________________              ________________________ 
Applicant Signature       Date 
 
_____________________________________________        _________________________ 
Co- Applicant Signature      Date 
 

 

Applicant Certification and Consent to Release Information: 
 
PLEASE CHECK THE FOLLOWING ITEMS THAT APPLY TO YOU: 
 
□  I/We certify that the information in this application and in support of this application is true and 

correct to the best of my/our knowledge and belief under full penalty of perjury.  I/We 
understand that perjury will result in disqualification from further consideration in this program. 

 
□ I/We understand that the use of this application is for a potential grant to purchase an 

affordable home in Brewster, and does not guarantee an offer. 
 
Your signature(s) below gives consent to the Town of Brewster, to verify information provided in this 
application.  No applications will be considered complete unless signed and dated by the Applicant and 
Co-Applicant (if any). 
 

_____________________________________________              ________________________ 
Applicant Signature       Date 
 
_____________________________________________        _________________________ 
Co- Applicant Signature      Date 
 

64



Brewster Affordable Home Buyers Buydown Program Ready Buyer Application 
 

7 
 

 
Required Financial Documentation & Verification Sheet 

 
 

□ Two months of most recent, consecutive paystubs for all working members of the 
household age 18 years and older.  

 

□ Federal Tax Returns (1040) from the last 3 years. Include W-2 and 1099-R forms. 
 

□ Verification of child support (copy of child support order, etc.) 
 

□ Verification of any other household income, ie: Social Security, SSDI, SSI, VA benefits, 
unemployment benefits, public assistance, etc. You may provide a copy of the official 
statement of monthly amount received for the present year.  
 

□ Savings account statement- submit the three most recent bank statement copies 
 

□ Checking account statement- submit the three most recent bank statement copies 
 

□ Verification of student status for each child 18 years of age or older who is a full time 
student. 
 

□ Mortgage pre-approval letter.  The letter must be from a mortgage lender and conform 
to the “LIP Program Standards for New Mortgage Loans.” (Appendix 2) 
 
 

 
  

65



Brewster Affordable Home Buyers Buydown Program Ready Buyer Application 
 

8 
 

APPENDIX 1:  Income and Assets  
INCOME: 
Income Limit: Total household annual income must be at/below the 80% Barnstable County Median 
Income limits, as adjusted for household size.  

 
Maximum Household Income Limits (Barnstable MSA) for 2023 

2023 HUD 
Income Limits 

Household 
Size 

1 
Person 

2 
Persons 

3 
Persons 

4 
Persons 

5 
Persons 

6 
Persons 

Affordable 
limits 

80% of AMI 

 
$64,450 

 
$73,650 

 
$82,850 

 
$92,050 

 
$99,450 

 
$106,800 

 
 
Annual Household Gross Income means all income, from all sources, of all current adult household 
members for the 12-month period following application.  
Annual income includes but is not limited to the following: 
• The full amount, before ANY payroll deductions, of wages and salaries, overtime pay, commissions, 
fees, tips and bonuses, and other compensation for personal services 
• Net income from the operation of a business or profession 
• Interest, dividends, and other net income of any kind rom real or personal property 
• Payments from Social Security, annuities, insurance policies, retirement funds, pensions, disability or 
death benefits, and other similar types of period receipts 
• Payments in lieu of earnings such as unemployment and disability compensation, worker’s 
compensation and severance pay 
• Welfare assistance payments 
• Alimony and child support 
• Regular pay, special pay, and allowances of a member of the Armed Forces 

ASSETS: 
Asset Limit: Total household assets cannot exceed $75,000 
Household Assets include the following: 
• Cash in savings accounts, checking accounts and safety deposit boxes, etc., certificates of deposit, 
bonds, stocks, treasury bills, mutual funds and money market accounts 
• Revocable trusts. 
• Equity in rental property or other capital investments 
• Retirement plans are included when the holder has access to the funds, even though a penalty may be 
assessed. Retirement funds are NOT included if amounts can only be withdrawn if upon termination of 
employment or retirement 
• Cash value of life insurance policies available to the applicant before death. 
• Personal property held as an investment (this includes gems, jewelry, coin collections, or antique cars 
held as investments; personal jewelry is NOT considered an asset) 
• Lump sum receipts or one-time receipts. (i.e. inheritance, capital gains, one-time lottery winnings, 
victim’s restitution, settlements on insurance claims (including health and accident insurance, worker’s 
compensation, and personal or property losses), and any other amounts that are not intended as 
periodic payments. 
• A mortgage or deed of trust held by an applicant. 
Household assets do not include: 
• Personal property. (clothing, furniture, cars, wedding ring and other jewelry that is not held as an 
investment, vehicles specially equipped for persons with disabilities) 
• Term life insurance policies. (i.e. where there is no cash value) 

66



Brewster Affordable Home Buyers Buydown Program Ready Buyer Application 
 

9 
 

• Equity in the cooperative unit in which the applicant lives. 
• Assets that are part of an active business. Business DOES NOT include rental of properties that are held 
as investments unless such properties are the applicant’s main source of income. 
• Assets that are not effectively owned by the applicant 
Assets disposed of for less than fair market value: Applicants must declare whether an asset has been 
disposed of for less than fair market value during the two years preceding application. If an asset has 
been disposed of for less than fair market value, the amount counted as an asset is the difference 
between the cash value and the amount actually received. 
 

 

 

APPENDIX 2:  LIP (Local Initiative Program) Program Standards for 
New Mortgage Loans 
 
 

 The loan must be a fully amortizing fixed rate mortgage with a down payment of at least 3%, at 
least half of which must come from the buyer’s own funds. 

 The loan must be made by an institutional lender. Loans from private parties are not allowed. 

 The loan must have a fixed rate through the full term of the mortgage that is a current fair 
market interest rate. 

 The loan can have no more than 2 points. 

 The buyer’s monthly housing costs (inclusive of principal, interest, property taxes, hazard 
insurance, private mortgage insurance and condominium or homeowner association fees) may 
not exceed 38% of the buyer’s monthly gross income. 

 Non-household members shall not be permitted as co-signers of the mortgage.  
 
 
 

APPENDIX 3: Summary of Affordable Housing Deed Restriction 

An affordable housing deed is a legal document recorded at the Registry of Deeds that specifies the 

resale, refinance and leasing provisions for the referenced property. The deed restriction ensures that 

the unit remains affordable for future purchasers of the property. It is strongly recommended that 

purchasers of a deed restricted affordable home review the deed restriction with their attorney and 

lender prior to closing.  

Here is a general description of the deed restriction: 

 The property must be the owner’s principal residence. 

 The deed rider restricts the resale price of the property. The rider includes a formula to calculate 

the future maximum resale price based on the Area Median Income at the time of resale. 

 Owners of a deed restricted home must notify the monitoring agent, the Town of Brewster, in 

writing of their intention to sell or convey the home.  

 Owners of a deed restricted affordable home cannot rent, lease, refinance or encumber the 

home without prior written consent of the monitoring agent, the Town of Brewster. 

 

67



 

Attachment C 

Buydown Program  

 

Letters of Support: 

Brewster Select Board  

Habitat for Humanity 

Housing Assistance Corporation 

Brewster Homebuyer 

68



69



June 8, 2023 

Faythe Ellis, Chair 

Community Preservation Committee 

2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631 

Dear Ms. Ellis, 

As CEO of Habitat for Humanity of Cape Cod, I am pleased to send you this Letter of Support for the Brewster Affordable 

Housing Trust's Community Preservation Grant request of $250,000 to fund the Brewster Affordable Home Buydown 

Program. This program, initiated in 2007, has assisted Brewster first time homebuyers in purchasing affordable homes 

in Brewster. 

Habitat for Humanity of Cape Cod partners with families in need of an affordable home to build one of their own, 

fostering stability, self-reliance, and a strong sense of community. We know the importance of creating affordable home 

ownership opportunities. The Brewster Buydown program facilitates the successful resale of affordable homes by 

providing financial support and partnering with a new household who will live in the home and be a part of the 

community. 

This past year a buydown grant helped with the resale of a Habitat home that was originally built in 2007. The home 

required extensive repairs and the buydown grant enabled an affordable purchase with the needed work being 

addressed. 

The Buydown program is a useful tool in addressing Cape Cod's affordable housing challenges and makes a tangible 

difference for both Brewster affordable home purchasers and the community. I encourage Brewster to continue funding 

the Buydown program and Habitat looks forward to building more homes in Brewster including two homes on Phoebe 

Way. 

Thank you for the fine work of the Community Preservation Committee and for Brewster's commitment to affordable 

housing. 

Sincerely, 

s:?:c:=' �� 
CEO/President 

Habitat for Humanity of Cape Cod 

70



71



April 21, 2023 
 
 
     Nicole L. Anthony 

14 Yankee Drive Brewster Ma.  
XXX‐XXX‐XXXX 

 
Jill Scalise 
Brewster Housing Coordinator Brewster Town Offices 
2198 Main Street 
Brewster, MA 02631 
Re: 14 Yankee Drive 
 
Dear Jill, 
 
It is with excitement and great pride that I write my new address on the top of my letter to you! 
I want to thank you and everyone involved with Brewster Housing for giving me the opportunity to 
purchase 14 Yankee Drive. 
 
As you may know, I was born and raised in Brewster. Returning to my hometown and owning my own 
place is a dream come true. 
 
I have met several of my neighbors and they have been very welcoming. I recently painted the unit and I 
am in the process of installing new flooring. I am excited to start furnishing and decorating. I am looking 
forward to having my first cookout with friends and family this summer! 
None of this would have been possible without the hard work and commitment from you and the 
Brewster Housing team, I will continue to support the program and I can’t thank you enough! 
 
Nicole Anthony-Owner 

72



 

Attachment D 

Housing Trust Financial Statement 

  

73



BAHT Account Balances & Interest Allocation: June 30, 2022 

Special Revenue Fund: BAHT:

FY16 FY19 Non- CPA CPA

Beginning Balance: 212.44 Beginning  Balance: - -

interest revenue 180.91 Trans fr Spec Revenue 87,693.99 100,000.00

Donation revenue 86,540.89 interest revenue 377.46 430.42

End Balance: 86,934.24 End Balance: 88,071.45 100,430.42

FY17 FY20

Beginning Balance: 86,934.24 Beginning Balance: 88,071.45 100,430.42

interest revenue 260.86 Expenses: (5,196.00) (13,100.00)

End Balance: 87,195.10 Transfer in fr GF 100,000.00

Transfer in fr CPA 300,000.00

interest revenue: 471.92 999.54

FY18 End Balance: 183,347.37 388,329.96

Beginning Balance: 87,195.10

interest revenue 498.89 FY21

End Balance: 87,693.99

Beginning Balance 183,347.37 388,329.96

FY19 Expenses: (15,222.00)

Trans in fr Stabilization 250,000.00

Beginning Balance: 87,693.99 interest revenue 439.74 378.61

Transfer to BAHT (87,693.99) End Balance: 433,787.11 373,486.57

End Balance in Spec Rev: -

FY 22

Beginning Balance: 433,787.11 373,486.57

Expenses: (7,163.92) (4,877.00)

Trans in from Gen Fund 250,000.00

Trans in from Spec Articles 150,000.00

interest revenue: 449.35 196.42

End Balance: 827,072.54 368,805.99

FY23 Start of Year 

Beginning Balance: 827,072.54 368,805.99

Expenses:

Transfer in from Gen Fund: 375,000.00

Transfer in from Spec. Art's

Transfer in from CPC 150,000.00

Interest Revenue

End Balance: 1,202,072.54 518,805.99

74



 

Attachment E 

Housing Trust Five-year Financial Plan 

 

 

 

75



Housing Trust 5 Year-Plan FY23-27

12.29.22

FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

Carryforward Balance 1,195,879 1,190,879 893,879 714,569 1,053,821

Anticipated Revenues 1,891,900 2,870,580 2,344,461 2,519,557 2,425,927

Appropriations 1,896,900 3,167,580 2,523,771 2,180,304 2,567,196
End Balance 1,190,879 893,879 714,569 1,053,821 912,553

FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

Projects: Funding Source 

Housing Coordinator CPA- Salary Only 66,900 70,580 74,461 78,557 82,877 Benefits paid by the Town-approx. 35K/ year

Housing Program Asst. BAHT Salary Only - 42,000 44,310 46,747 49,318 19 Hours- new non-benefitted position

Rental Assistance CPA 150,000 150,000 150,000

Preservaton of SHI Homes CPA 300,000 200,000

Buy Down Program CPA 300,000 300,000

Housing Production Plan CPA 30,000

212 Yankee Drive BAHT 75,000

Town Development of Other Properties BAHT 500,000 500,000

Outside Applications for Funding BAHT 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000

Millstone Road Community Housing CPA/BAHT 1,000,000

Legal Expenses CPA/BAHT 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000

Housing Rehabilitation-Child Care Vouchers CDBG-Regional Grant 1,300,000 1,500,000 1,700,000 1,700,000 1,700,000 Town is lead community for Dennis, Wellfleet and Brewster 

Total Appropriations: 1,896,900 3,167,580 2,523,771 2,180,304 2,567,196

Sources

Short Term Rentals Allocation 375,000 400,000 420,000 441,000 463,050 Financial Forecast 5% escalator

CPA Housing Coord. Wages 66,900 70,580 74,461 78,557 82,877

CPA Rental Assistance 150,000 150,000 150,000

CPA for SHI Homes - 200,000

Proceeds on Re-sale of SHI Homes 150,000

CPA Buy Down 300,000 300,000

CPA Housing Production Plan 30,000

CPA Millstone Rd. Community Housing 250,000

Grants & Donations

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 1,300,000 1,500,000 1,700,000 1,700,000 1,700,000

Total Revenues: 1,891,900 2,870,580 2,344,461 2,519,557 2,425,927

CPA Rev 216,900 820,580 224,461 378,557 262,877

CPA Exp 516,900 570,580 224,461 378,557 262,877 390,675.00 5 year average

Estimated annual CPA revenue 1,492,304 1,529,612 1,567,852 1,607,048 1,647,225

Target Allocation Policy- Housing 30% 447,691 458,884 470,356 482,115 494,167

TAP - Open Space 30% 447,691 458,884 470,356 482,115 494,167

TAP - Recreation 10% 149,230 152,961 156,785 160,705 164,722

TAP- Historic 10% 149,230 152,961 156,785 160,705 164,722

CPA Recommended 20% 298,461 305,922 313,570 321,410 329,445

1,492,304 1,529,612 1,567,852 1,607,048 1,647,225

76



77



78



 

 

 

12. Rental Assistance 

79



 
 

Rental Assistance Monitoring Report Town of Brewster as of 6/1/23:  

All applicants complete a universal application to be determined eligible for funding. These 

Funding Sources are RAFT, Workforce Housing Relief Funds, and private prevention dollars. 

Applicants are first checked to see eligibility for RAFT (state funds). If these funds can be utilized 

for the applicant household they are applied first. Households who can be serviced utilizing 

RAFT dollars are not brought into the Workforce Housing Relief Fund process.  

For the reporting period we serviced 11 household from Brewster with a total of $42,034. The 

majority were serviced through RAFT and Private Funds. These households do not include the 

Brewster Assistance Participants.   

In addition, the total number of new households that were entered into the Brewster Relief 

Fund was 2 from 3/1/23-5/31/23.  

 

Total New Applicants in Town of Brewster considered for Brewster Town funds:  

Approved: 2 

Denied: 1 

Denial Cause:  The application did not meet program requirements.  

 

Affirmative Marketing for Reporting Period: 

Emails 
 
3/1: Walk for Hope 
4/7: 2022 Annual Report & 2023 Events Calendar 
4/8: Housing Trusts 101 – watch the video  
4/26: April 2023 HACbeat 
4/29: Brewster Town Meeting 
5/2: Spring e-Appeal 
5/3: Become a Housing Advocate 
 
 
Website additions 
 
• Classes: Updates to FTHB, HomeSafe, Money Matters, COVID-19 Workshop 

80



 
 
Press Releases 
 
3/27: Healey & Driscoll Bring Inaugural Events to Cape  
5/4: Brewster Woods Ribbon Cutting  
5/9: Local Officials Celebrate New Affordable Housing in Brewster, Say More Units are Critically 
Needed   
 
 
Social Media 
 
3/3 
"The housing crisis has reached a fever pitch on Cape Cod, Martha’s Vineyard, and 
Nantucket...Families now need an annual household income of $210,000 to afford the median 
priced single-family home on Cape Cod, and nearly half of our workforce commutes over the 
bridge to work here every day." 
 
3/14 
Housing Assistance is now serving residents on the Lower Cape and Outer Cape in a more 
accessible way with a new satellite office at 78 Route 6A, Orleans. 
 
3/16 
Here's another opportunity to get educated, empowered and engaged - sign up to learn how to 
become a housing advocate! 
 
3/24 
If you are struggling, you might qualify for the Housing Assistance Corporation’s THRIVE 
program. THRIVE (Tools to Help Residents In a Vulnerable Economy) is a new program 
designed and created by Housing Assistance Corporation to address housing affordability and 
increase empowerment for households on Cape Cod.  
 
3/27 
Want to address our housing crisis and make a difference? Leadership training is available! 
 
4/3 
We had our first in a series of municipal leader education workshops last week: Housing Trusts 
101. 
 
4/8 
Who will take care of the aging population as the gap between the number of elderly individuals 
and caregivers continues to widen? When essential workers are displaced, hospital waiting 
rooms will grow and medical services will likely take a significant blow. 
 
4/11 
THRIVE is a new program designed and created by Housing Assistance Corporation to address 
housing affordability and increase empowerment for households on Cape Cod. 

81



 
 
4/17 
Your town needs to hear that solving our region’s housing crisis is important to you! Public 
officials listen to the voters in their town, but if we don’t show up, call, or email them and ask 
them to prioritize housing, they don’t know how much we care. 
 
4/23 
“I’ve seen the impacts of the rise in the cost of housing over the last few years and how that’s 
affecting people’s ability to live here and stay here,” says Marissa Cyr. “Like many people, I’m 
concerned about what that means for the future of our region. I’m committed to being part of the 
solutions to addressing those challenges.” 
 
4/26 
Are you looking for an opportunity to get educated, empowered and engaged when it comes to 
housing on Cape Cod? Sign up to learn how to become a housing advocate! 
 
4/29 
"Housing is one of the most important pillars underpinning our everyday existence. When our 
housing is no longer stable, our everyday security is threatened. That loss of security can trigger 
a deeply personal, emotional response. Disturbingly, the housing crisis is touching more of us 
on the Cape and Islands with each passing day.” (Alisa Magnotta's editorial) 
 
5/4 
Are you looking for an opportunity to get educated, empowered and engaged when it comes to 
housing on Cape Cod? Sign up to learn how to become a housing advocate!  
 
5/4 
Keeping tenants in existing homes is one of our primary goals! (Cape Cod Times) 
 
5/7 
"Speaking up for housing makes sense to many would-be advocates, but, for some, public 
speaking can be intimidating. That’s why Housing Assistance is hosting a series of workshops 
aimed at making people more comfortable with taking a public stand." 
 
5/8 
The Cape Cod Commission has a new online survey to supplement their strategy to boost 
housing across the region, which will address issues like housing supply, availability, and 
affordability. 
 
5/9 
There goes the ribbon! Dorothy Anderson, the first resident to move into Brewster Woods, does 
the honors, surrounded by the people that helped make it happen. 
 
5/10 

82

https://www.facebook.com/CapeCodCommission?__cft__%5B0%5D=AZUKnBhK3bhh8py1LMvu0xqREVkbNOAIRS4wpf0zXJutx4GXYkSykamitrsFqeXclNqdGinC5M3ul51HyoJk-Tz1KzQXtXJu7051d-nIkw3qk406N9V_l6ymi-_iWuI0TRY&__tn__=-%5DK-R


 
Based on the average asking rent in Barnstable County, lower-income workers in industries 
such as Leisure & Hospitality and Retail Trade are severely cost burdened, having to spend 
53% and 40% of their yearly wages on rental housing, respectively. 
You can help address our housing crisis by getting engaged and involved. Learn more at 
housingtoprotectcapecod.org 
 
5/11 
Krista O’Brien is working a new job she loves and living in her own rental apartment in Brewster 
with her three-year-old son, Cameron Auger… 
 
5/18 
A win for housing! 
Governor Maura Healey and Lt. Gov. Kim Driscoll announce $246M to build and preserve 1,600 
affordable and mixed-Income housing units. 
 
5/20 
"'We answer calls from crisis to contractors to intake,' said Suzanne Smith, the Weatherization 
Assistance Program (WAP) coordinator. “It might be a homeowner with an emergency heat 
situation, pests in the attic, a failed appliance or people in need of assistance to combat high 
heating bills. It’s rewarding being able to help with so many different situations.'" 
 
5/23 
"Launched last June, THRIVE (Tools to Help Residents in a Vulnerable Economy) assists Cape 
Cod residents who are struggling to pay for housing and other bills while employed in childcare 
or working with people with developmental disabilities." 
 
5/23 
@Cape Light Compact is offering an E-Bike Incentive program for income-eligible residents on 
the Cape & Vineyard! 
 
5/30 
The average Cape home payment is $4,158. This means that a households would need to 
make at least $166,305 a year to afford to live here. 
You can help address our housing crisis by getting engaged and involved. Learn more at 
housingtoprotectcapecod.org. 
 
5/31 
Cape Light Compact is offering an E-Bike Incentive program for income-eligible residents on the 
Cape & Vineyard! 

 

83

http://housingtoprotectcapecod.org/?fbclid=IwAR1zXzhKOZrxpQp-8pB-5SDKtkkjaZzZq1Bl5JF88h2w7Ax1MXH9Z0avuMI
https://www.facebook.com/MAGovernor?__cft__%5B0%5D=AZXikWM7dl3S_Inm6HMdTwaNzHXi5sfN-6prOaXqMZDj2feQJCb5oBzGjoIknFEM7PNAeHit04y8u5unddh5-L2PwRb_O6Usv_J457co1cOtLFbs7TSCA556-B1VpWsSdbI&__tn__=-%5DK-R
https://www.facebook.com/votekimdriscoll?__cft__%5B0%5D=AZXikWM7dl3S_Inm6HMdTwaNzHXi5sfN-6prOaXqMZDj2feQJCb5oBzGjoIknFEM7PNAeHit04y8u5unddh5-L2PwRb_O6Usv_J457co1cOtLFbs7TSCA556-B1VpWsSdbI&__tn__=-%5DK-R
http://housingtoprotectcapecod.org/?fbclid=IwAR3EgKB-WXHBHnKouNhfcD_9usvSL-cQkZvV5vTZcZ4xhi4RV8iZ4s_dumU


Page 1 of 4  

Brewster Rental Assistance Information Sheet and Program Guidelines 7.2023 

  

Goal: To provide economic assistance for affordable rental housing with social support services to 

bridge households and assist them in accessing and maintaining market, and affordable, long term 

housing options.  

 

Funding Source: Created by the Brewster Affordable Housing Trust, rental assistance is supported by 

the residents of Brewster through grants of Community Preservation Act (CPA) funds.  

 

Requirements for ongoing Rental Assistance Program   

 Must be a Brewster resident or employee or have a child in Brewster public elementary schools.  

 Household income must be below, or at, 80% AMI and paying over 30% of income on rent. 

 Rental unit must be located in Brewster, be a legal rental unit, and have a written lease. 

 Monthly rent amount must meet HAC’s determination of ‘rent reasonableness’ for Barnstable 

County, rent cannot exceed 120% of HUD fair market value for Barnstable County. 

 Participants may not be receiving other rental assistance. 

 

Program Guidelines for ongoing Rental Assistance 

 Up to $500 per month rental assistance (amount based on tenant portion of rent at 30% of 

household income; childcare costs & high or emergency health care costs, may be included in 

determination). 

 Lease payments made directly to landlord. 

 Annual review and adjustment of rental assistance, with maximum of 3 years of assistance 

subject to funding availability and active participation in program. 

 Participants shall participate in case management.  

 

Financial Commitment 

  $ 150,000 designated. Ability to serve up to 15 ongoing households per year. If the 15- 
household limit is reached, discussion with the Housing Trust is encouraged. 

 

Program Application and Review Process 

Household Income Eligibility: The gross income of the applicant and all other members of the 

applicant’s household over the age of eighteen (18) may not exceed 80% of the Area Median Income 

for Barnstable County. Currently, an applicant’s total household income cannot exceed these limits: 

2023 
HUD 

Income 
Limits 

Household 
Size 

1 
Person 

2 
Persons 

3 
Persons 

4 
Persons 

5 
Persons 

6 
Persons 

80% 
AMI 

 $64,450 
 

$73,650 
 

$ 82,850 
 

$92,050 
 

$99,450 
 

$106,800 
 

84



Page 2 of 4  

 

Application Process: 

 All potential applicants must complete an application and attach requested documents. 

 Assistance with the submission of the application is available to those with limited computer 

access. 

 Applicants have the right to request a reasonable accommodation(s), which may include a 

change to a rule, policy, procedure, or practice to afford a person with a disability an equal 

opportunity to participate fully in the housing program or to use and enjoy the housing. 

 Free language assistance is available to households with limited English proficiency. 

 Qualifying households will be offered the opportunity to enter into a Rental Assistance 

Agreement with their landlord and the Program Administrator. 

 The Program Administrator will proceed through the applications in this manner until the limit 

of 10 households receive ongoing monthly assistance is reached. 

 
Affirmative Marketing Methods: 
The Program Administrator does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, 
national origin, disability, familial status, sex, age, marital status, children, sexual 
orientation, genetic information, gender identify, ancestry, veteran/military status or 
membership. 

 
Marketing Activities 

Marketing activities will be conducted on an ongoing basis. Efforts include:  
1) Town website pages 
2) Email outreach to local employers and non-profit organizations, housing developments 

with affordable units, and Brewster legislative delegation. 
 

Applications will be available on-line at the Program Administrator’s website, or via paper and 
the US Postal Service. In all cases the process begins by contacting the Program Administrator’s 
office. The Program Administrator staff are available to assist individuals in the completion of 
their application and can accommodate households with disabilities that may impede their 
ability to complete the application. The Program Administrator staff can also arrange for 
assistance for households that have limited English proficiency. Applicants have the right to 
request a reasonable accommodation, which may include a change to a policy, procedure, or 
practice to afford a person with a disability an equal opportunity to participate fully in the 
housing program or to use and enjoy the housing. 

 

 

    

85



Page 3 of 4  

Brewster Rental Assistance Program 

Program Standards 
 

Component Program Standard 

Income 
Restriction 

Program serves households up to 80% Area Median Income (AMI). 

Benefit It is expected that all other resources available to a household will be assessed  
and accessed before these rental assistance funds are used. 
- Up to $500 per household per month, for a maximum of $6,000 in a 12-

month benefit period. 
- First come, first served. 

Local program 
administration 

Program Administrator has a physical office and staff based on the Lower Cape.  

Professional case 
management 

Program administration includes professional case management provided by 
staff with significant Lower and Outer Cape experience and/or a relevant 
degree. Staff receives continuing education. Preferably, program administrator 
employs case managers who are fluent in non-English languages spoken on the 
Lower and Outer Cape. If needed, translation services must be available for 
program participants. 
 
Program administration includes: 

1. Initial intake 
2. Assessment of need and available services 
3. Professional case management 
4. Financial counseling if needed 
5. Standardized data collection & reporting (see Outcomes & Metrics) 
6. Follow up and re-evaluation as needed. Including an annual review and 

adjustment of rental assistance, with a maximum of 3 years of 
assistance subject to funding availability and active participation in 
program.  

Funding Source Existing Community Preservation Act (CPA) funds already allocated for Rental 
Assistance. 

Program 
Evaluation 

The Brewster Affordable Housing Trust and Housing Coordinator will review 
quarterly reports.  Based on program evaluation, the Housing Trust and  
Program Administrator may agree to make adjustments to the Brewster Rental 
Assistance Program. 
 

 

  

86



Page 4 of 4  

Brewster Rental Assistance Program  
Outcomes & Metrics 
All metrics are recorded quarterly at 3, 6, 9 and 12 months. 

Outcome (The program is 
successful when…) 

Metric (How we measure the 
outcome) 

Notes 

Household maintains housing % of households reporting “Yes” Self-reported (Yes/No) 

Household maintains childcare % of households reporting “Yes” Self-reported (Yes/No) 

Household can afford adequate 
food 

% of households reporting “Yes” Self-reported (Yes/No) 

Household can afford 
heat/utilities 

% of households reporting “Yes” Self-reported (Yes/No) 

Households avoids eviction  % of households reporting 
“Yes” 

 % of households who have 
received correspondence 
related to a threat of eviction 

Self-reported 

Additional resources identified 
& secured 

 % of households receiving other 
assistance  

 List of other assistance received 

 List of all resources accessed, 
per household, due to program 

 

Household reports that 
assistance has a positive effect 

 % who experienced a change in 
employment status during 
program participation 

 % able to sustain tenancy after 
assistance 

Collect anecdotal success 
story per household, if 
applicable 

Program equitable serves 
households of color 

% of households served that are 
non-white is greater than or equal 
to the race demographics of the 
town 

Self-reported based on any 
household member 

Additional data to be collected: 

 # of households served broken down by adults, seniors and children 

 Occupation of all household members 

 Household’s income and percentage of area median income (AMI) 

 Race and ethnicity of all household members 

 Gender of all household members, including non-binary categories 

 Number of households who have applied for Rental Assistance compared to emergency rental 

assistance 

 Average award per household 

 Household size 
 Reasons applications not accepted 
 Trends in AMI and notes regarding emerging trends  

87



 

 

 

13. Housing Coordinator 

88



Housing Coordinator Update May 2023 

Jill Scalise  
 

Ongoing Activities/ Projects  
1. Community Outreach and Education (Housing Production Plan (HPP) Strategy #14) 

 Responded to email and phone requests for information and assistance, 43 total requests for housing 
information (28) or assistance (15). Open office hours Thursday from 10-noon. 

 Outreach for the Cape Cod Commission’s Housing Survey. 

 New 2023 HUD income limits reported. Median Family Income for Barnstable County is $124,300. 
2. Brewster Affordable Housing Trust (BAHT) (HPP assorted strategies, Select Board (SB) Strategic Plan H-1)  

 Reviewed Housing Trust’s progress on BAHT priority initiatives. 

 Trust approved parameters for Affordable Buydown program.  

 Drafted initial job description for the Housing Program Assistant position to be funded by Housing Trust. 

3. Community Housing Parcel off Millstone (SB Strategic Plan H-4, HPP Strategies #12 & 16)  

 Preservation of Affordable Housing (POAH) and Housing Assistance Corporation (HAC) Zoning Board of 

Appeals (ZBA) Comprehensive Permit application: public hearing closed, 1st draft decision provided, case 
continued to June. Assisted Town Planner, consultant, and Asst. Town Manager with draft decision. 

4.Comprehensive Permit Projects (HPP Strategy #16) 

 Brewster Woods (30 affordable rental units): All units leased. POAH and HAC held an encouraging ribbon 
cutting ceremony that was well attended by Brewster staff, residents, legislators & project representatives.  

 Habitat for Humanity Red Top Road (2 affordable homes): Marketing ready to begin when the state 
approves the fair housing marketing plan. 

5. Preservation of Housing and Related Support of Brewster Residents (SB H-3, HPP Strategy #20) 

 Brewster’s rental assistance program-  Researched and provided rental program evaluation memo. Housing 
Trust voted to continue rental assistance program. RFQ will be issued in coming months.  

 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)- Attended public hearing. Childcare funding approved for 
10 Brewster children, $36,000 encumbered. 5 Brewster housing rehabilitation projects approved thus far. 

6. Subsidized Housing Inventory (SHI) (HPP Strategy #21 & 22) 

 212 Yankee Drive- Site visit. Still assessing scope of work for Invitation for Bid, hope to complete in June. 
7. Housing Production Plan (HPP) (Select Board Strategic Plan Goal H-2) 

 ADU/ACDU bylaw review and evaluation. Assisted Town Planner Idman & Asst. Town Manager Kalinick 
with research and presentation to Planning Board.  

 The Town Planner, with staff input, compiled a MA “One Stop’ Community Planning Grant application for 
funds to examine the current zoning bylaw and identify impediments and opportunities for multi-unit and 
mixed-use residential housing. 

8.  Collaboration (HPP Strategy #7)  

 Asst Town Manager and Housing Trust Chair staffed a Housing Program table at the Council on Aging 
(COA) Wellness Fair. Met with COA Director. Also, met with a COA Board member and provided letter of 
support for COA grant request for benches on Brewster Road. 

 Participated in Cape Cod Hoarding Task Force Session, Community Development Partnership regional 

meeting on year-round deed restrictions, and HOME Consortium.   
Upcoming Events: 

 Local Preference Information Session planned for Summer 2023 

Personnel 

 Participated in Housing Trust, Housing Partnership, Planning Board and ZBA meetings. Attended Town 

Meeting. Worked with: Assessors, Building, Council on Aging, CPC, Finance, Health, Planning, Public 
Works, Water, Town Administration & ZBA. Completed cybersecurity training. 

 Special thanks for the ongoing involvement of and terrific support from the Planning Department (Jon 

Idman, Lynn St Cyr & Ellen Murphy) and Assistant Town Manager Donna Kalinick. 

89



90



ADU ZONING AMENDMENT TIMELINE 2023 

& 

PLANNING BOARD REGULAR MEETING DATES 

 

JUNE JULY AUGUST SEPT  OCT NOV 

6/14 6/28 7/12 7/26 8/9 8/23 9/13 9/27 10/11 10/25 11/8 

 

PB WORKPLAN  
DISCUSSION 

  

LISTENING SESSION/S 

 

Outreach to related committees  
(e.g. ZBA and Housing Partnership) 
& community organizations 

 

DRAFTING WORKSHOPS/ PB VOTE 

 

Hrg notice to 
newspaper 
(3 weeks 
advance) 

 

|------------------MGL C. 40A s. 5 Procedures-----------------| 

PB submission to SB 
SB referral to PB 

 

Hrg Notice published 
(14/7 days in advance) 

 

Public Hearing/s 

 

PB Vote/ 
Recommendation  

 

SB Vote/ STM 
Warrant Closes 
(est. 10/13) 

 

STM 11/13 
PB Report 

 

 

|----------------------------------INPUT: PUBLIC, STAFF, COMMITTEES, OFFICIALS -------------------------------------| 

91



ADU LISTENING SESSION
Brewster  P lann ing Board

June 28 ,  2023
92



MEETING TOPICS/ 
PUBLIC INPUT

• Discuss Existing Zoning Bylaw

• Discuss General ADU Criteria

• Discuss potential amendments

• General observations, 
experiences, comments & 
suggestions

J U N E  2 8 ,  2 0 2 3 A D U  L I S T E N I N G  S E S S I O N - B R E W S T E R  P L  B D 2
93



WHAT IS AN ADU?
• Regulated by zoning

• Accessory single- family dwelling unit

• Accessory use to main home- not independent

• Self-contained living (cooking, sanitary, sleeping) 

facilities

• Same lot as main dwelling

J U N E  2 8 ,  2 0 2 3 A D U  L I S T E N I N G  S E S S I O N - B R E W S T E R  P L  B D 3
94



EXISTING ADU ZONING

•  S i ze :  l esser  of  40% main  home or  900 
sq  f t

• Can be a t tached ,  w i th in  or  detached
• Owner  occupancy  req ’d- 12  mos .
• Lease  te rm 12  mos .
• Addi t iona l  park ing spaces  req ’d
• No more  than 2  bedrooms
• Max 2  dwe l l ing  un i t s  per  lo t ,  inc l .  ADU
• Annua l  ADU permi t  cap- 20
• No board ing/  lodg ing
• Des ign subord inate  to  ma in  house
• ZBA approva l  req ’d in  water  protec t ion 

over lay  d i s t r i c t s  and on lo t s  >30 ,000 s f

J U N E  2 8 ,  2 0 2 3 A D U  L I S T E N I N G  S E S S I O N - B R E W S T E R  P L  B D 4
95



TYPICAL CONSIDERATIONS-
ADU ZONING

• “Purpose” clause (intent)

• Owner occupancy

• Tenancy

• Lot size/ dimensional regulations

• ADU Size

• Design requirements

• Special permit?

• Enforcement/ administration

• Annual permit cap

• Reference to related laws and regs (health, 

bldg, etc)

J U N E  2 8 ,  2 0 2 3 A D U  L I S T E N I N G  S E S S I O N - B R E W S T E R  P L  B D 5
96



“PURPOSE” CLAUSE
• Brewster ADU Zoning does not currently have one 
• Inclusion could bolster year-round housing intent 

J U N E  2 8 ,  2 0 2 3 A D U  L I S T E N I N G  S E S S I O N - B R E W S T E R  P L  B D 6
97



OWNER OCCUPANCY

• Required currently for continuous 12 mo. period

(either unit)

• No express bona fide absence clause

• Part time residents can’t have an ADU under 

current language

J U N E  2 8 ,  2 0 2 3 A D U  L I S T E N I N G  S E S S I O N - B R E W S T E R  P L  B D 7
98



TENANCY

• Must be 12 mo. lease currently

• Does year-round housing = 12 mo. lease?

J U N E  2 8 ,  2 0 2 3 A D U  L I S T E N I N G  S E S S I O N - B R E W S T E R  P L  B D 8
99



LOT SIZE/ 
DIMENSIONAL REGS

• ZBA Special Permit for less than 30000 sq ft lot-

(historical zoning in Brewster was 25k or 15k)

• ZBL currently only references setbacks for attached 

ADUs (not other dimensional reqs. like coverage, height, 

etc. or detached buildings)

• Refers to ‘conforming’ setback for district (ZBL Table 2)

• Brewster Zoning has unique setbacks- “per lot” not 

district- back to when lot was created

J U N E  2 8 ,  2 0 2 3 A D U  L I S T E N I N G  S E S S I O N - B R E W S T E R  P L  B D 9
100



ADU SIZE
• 40% habitable space of main house or 900 sq ft, whichever is 

less

• ‘Habitable’ not defined under the ZBL- under SBC excludes 

bathrooms, halls, closets, utility spaces

• % approach advantages a) larger existing homes, and b) can 

be confusing and difficult to calculate. 

• Examples:

• 40% ADU WITHIN an existing 1500 sq ft dwelling= approx. 

400 sq ft ADU allowed

• 40% ADU within a DETACHED building accessory or 

ADDITION to an existing 1500 sq ft dwelling= approx. 600 

sq ft ADU

• Existing 2250 sq ft home necessary to get max 900 sq ft 

ADU based on 40% rule (if ADU proposed as an addition 

or detached building)

J U N E  2 8 ,  2 0 2 3 A D U  L I S T E N I N G  S E S S I O N - B R E W S T E R  P L  B D 1 0
101



DESIGN
• “Clearly subordinate” to main house

• Is this a use or design provision?

• Focus on single-family residential character of 

property?

J U N E  2 8 ,  2 0 2 3 A D U  L I S T E N I N G  S E S S I O N - B R E W S T E R  P L  B D 1 1
102



ADU SPECIAL PERMIT
• Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) approval req’d:

• Lots less than 30,000 sq ft

• Herring River Watershed

• DCPC (Zone II & Pleasant Bay Watershed)

• Water overlays occupy entire south part of Town 

• See GIS map: 

https://www.mapsonline.net/brewsterma/index.htm

l

• DCPC zoning includes groundwater protection 

provisions re: Nitrogen

• Planning Board SPGA?

• Adopt unique Special Permit standards for ADUs?

• 15k & 25k sq ft historic lot sizes under zoning

J U N E  2 8 ,  2 0 2 3 A D U  L I S T E N I N G  S E S S I O N - B R E W S T E R  P L  B D 1 2
103



ENFORCEMENT/
ADMINISTRATION

• Building Commissioner

• Annual affidavit required (currently ZBL 

prescribes content)

• No existing tracking or registration mechanism

• In some rare cases, a CO or construction permit 

under the SBC might not be required 

• Existing permit cap of 20/ year

• Haven’t been close to approaching

• Other laws and regulations are referenced in the 

ZBL (Title 5, SBC, etc.)

J U N E  2 8 ,  2 0 2 3 A D U  L I S T E N I N G  S E S S I O N - B R E W S T E R  P L  B D 1 3
104



GENERAL 
OBSERVATIONS, 
EXPERIENCES,
COMMENTS & 
SUGGESTIONS

• THANK YOU! YOUR 

INPUT IS VALUED!

J U N E  2 8 ,  2 0 2 3 A D U  L I S T E N I N G  S E S S I O N - B R E W S T E R  P L  B D 1 4
105



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14. Local Comprehensive Plan 

106



18 

Housing 

Background and Current Status 
The cost and availability of housing in Brewster was identified as the largest single challenge at the June 2017 Vision Planning Workshops, with 
an emphasis on how the lack of affordable housing impacts young families.  Workshop participants saw housing as key to allowing young families 
to stay in Brewster, maintaining the diverse community that residents value, and providing the workforce that the local economy needs. 

“Affordable Housing” is a term defined under state and federal law and policy meaning housing affordable to low- and moderate-income 
households, i.e., households earning no more than 80% of the area median income (AMI) for the county.  In contrast, “attainable” or “workforce” 
housing is not a formally defined term.  It refers to housing affordable for households whose incomes are too high for “affordable housing” but are 
priced out of the market i.e., households earning between 80-120% AMI.  In either case, households should not be required to spend more than 
30% of their income on housing costs. 

Affordable housing identified by workshop participants as the biggest challenge facing the Town. While those with the lowest incomes face the 
greatest housing need and challenges, the cost and availability of housing, both for year-round rentals and ownership opportunities, is an issue as 
well for many households who do not qualify for affordable housing, making it challenging for both younger families and older residents to remain 
in town.  

Brewster, like the rest of the Cape, is facing housing issues that are common to a number of resort, tourist-based areas throughout the country that 
have a significant percentage of seasonally-used housing stock (44% in Brewster). These areas all have high housing costs, in part because the 
average income of second homeowners is greater than that of year-round residents, which can drive up the cost of housing. Brewster’s housing 
stock primarily consists of detached single-family homes (75%).  Brewster has twice the percentage of residential condominium units (11%) than 
in Barnstable County towns on average (ACS 5-Year Estimates, 2016-2020). Environmental and infrastructure factors also contribute to the higher 
cost of housing in Brewster. According to the Cape Cod Commission, one of the affordable housing challenges is the gap between the Cape’s 
comparatively low wages and high housing costs. While wages have remained relatively stagnant, housing costs have risen dramatically.  
Brewster’s housing problem is also exacerbated by its aging population, with few young people and limited local workers. 

As for affordable housing, the town has 327 units or 6.8% counted as affordable and needs to add 153 affordable units to meet the 10% goal. The 
10% metric, however, understates the range of housing needs that exists in town.  Currently, 260 of the affordable units are rental units. In 2021, 
31% of all rental units in Brewster were deed restricted affordable housing units. This is reflected in the median Brewster rent of $1,097, which 
was artificially depressed by the percentage of subsidized housing. The median rent in 2021 was $1,340, a 22% increase in 2 years. 

A challenging housing situation has worsened dramatically since 2017.  Intensified with changes associated by the COVID pandemic, the cost of 
housing has increased along with a sharp decrease in the number of properties for sale. Additionally, there has been a reduction in the number of 
homes used for year-round rentals. In 2022, the median sales price of a single-family home in Brewster was $775,000, an increase of 44% over 
$540,000 in 2020, and an 99 % increase from the original Housing Summary statistic of $389,750 in 2015. The affordability gap has also grown 
tremendously. The 2022 HUD-defined Barnstable County Area Median Family Income ($115,600) could affordably purchase a home, with 
current tax and mortgage rates, at a maximum of $420,579. 85% of Brewster year-round households own their own homes, 31% of which are 

107



19 

housing-cost burdened (paying over 30% of their income on housing), while 64% of Brewster year-round rental households are housing cost 
burdened.  

Recent Actions by the Town 
Over the past six years, a clear pattern has emerged in Brewster’s housing response.  Town support has resulted in a number of housing initiatives 
and their corresponding Community Preservation Act (CPA), budget, and free cash funding. Creative collaboration, supportive teamwork, and 
resident involvement have exponentially increased the Town’s efforts. Many of the strategies identified in the Town’s 2017 Housing Production 
Plan (HPP) have been implemented. In 2017, the Town hired a part-time housing coordinator with CPA funds to coordinate the remaining 
strategies identified in that Plan. The Town then created a Municipal Affordable Housing Trust, supported with CPA funds and free cash 
allocations. In 2021, the Select Board adopted a policy to allocate 50% of the forecasted new short-term rental revenue to the Housing Trust. In 
2017, Ocean Edge Resort received a special permit to create seasonal workforce housing on their property. 

In 2018, Town Meeting amended the zoning bylaw with new Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) provisions. ADUs are a way to utilize current 
infrastructure, assist homeowners, and create environmentally friendly housing. Approximately 16 accessory residential units, which includes 
ADUs, have been permitted since 2018.  

The Town has initiatives to both preserve housing and support housing without new construction. In 2021, along with Dennis and Wellfleet, 
Brewster was part of a $1.3-million-dollar regional Housing Rehabilitation and Childcare Community Development Block Grant (CDBG).  As the 
lead community, Brewster was awarded another $1.3-million-dollar regional CDBG grant to continue the program in 2022. In response to the high 
price of rental housing and impact of COVID pandemic on workers, the Housing Trust created a rental assistance program funded with a CPA 
grant and managed by Housing Assistance Corporation. The Town also continues to operate an affordable home ownership buydown program 
funded through the CPA. 

Partnerships with non-profit organizations and effectively using Chapter 40B Comprehensive Permits were additional strategies in the HPP. In 
2018, the Town used CPA funds to purchase an access parcel and officially designated the 16 acres of Town-owned land off Millstone Road for 
community housing. Upon the recommendation of the Brewster Housing Trust, the Select Board accepted a proposal to build a compact grouping 
of 45 energy efficient affordable rental apartments which leaves most of the property untouched. Partnerships with non-profits and effectively 
using Chapter 40B Comprehensive Permits were additional strategies in the Housing Production Plan (HPP) that have been pursued.  Brewster 
Woods, comprised of thirty affordable rental apartments for those in the low to moderate income bracket on Housing Authority land off Brewster 
Road, opened in February 2023. Elevation Financial, working in partnership with the Town, redeveloped the former vacant Wingate Rehabilitation 
Center into Serenity at Brewster with 132 apartments for people aged 55 and over. Construction was completed in July 2022. 20% of the units are 
deed restricted affordable for households up to 80% of the Area Median Income (AMI).  

In 2022 Brewster completed an update to its 2017 Housing Production Plan (HPP). This plan assesses the community’s housing needs, sets goals, 
and guides the implementation of Brewster’s Housing Program over the next five years. The HPP aims to produce 24 units of affordable housing a 
year as Brewster works towards the state mandated 10% affordable year-round housing stock. Brewster’s 2017 HPP met this production goal twice 
and is currently certified by the state until May 15, 2023. Funded with a Community Preservation Act grant, the 2022 HPP was prepared by Barrett 
Planning Group with a robust outreach process led by the Housing Partnership. The Select and Planning Boards approved the HPP update in July 
2022; state approval followed in August 2022 

108



20 

Key Issues Moving Forward 
There is no single solution that will provide all the needed housing options for our residents and workforce. While the unanticipated pandemic has 
shown how housing intertwines with physical, economic, and community health, the 2021 Cape Cod Sea Camps purchase demonstrates the 
Town’s ability to mobilize around a common goal. Looking forward, the Town updated the Housing Production Plan in 2022. The updated HPP 
will help the Town better understand the impacts of the pandemic, reassess the housing needs, and retool strategies for the next five years. A 
summary of the 2022 HPP is provided in Section 7. The lack of a centralized or smaller scale wastewater treatment infrastructure limits the 
development potential of available land.  Rehabilitation and support programs will also be needed to both create and preserve housing.  

Opportunities ahead for increasing housing options include expanded collaboration with Town and community entities, as well as an ongoing 
commitment to funding. Additional possibilities exist for joint work with conservation and environmental groups as well as businesses and the 
Chamber of Commerce.  Zoning remains an area of potential housing opportunity, including reassessing the current ADU bylaw provisions.   

109



49 

HOUSING (HO) 

GOAL: Provide more affordable, attainable, accessible, safe, and fair housing, and support residents to maintain and preserve 

their current housing in order to remain in the community 

PURPOSE 1: Achieve the Commonwealth’s goal of 10% affordable housing by 2029 
Actions: 
HO1. Implement the 2022 Housing Production Plan (HPP) Update. 

HO2. Collaborate with existing local and regional groups to conduct public forums educating the general public on what affordable housing 

is and why it is important in Brewster. 

HO3. Work collaboratively with other towns to increase opportunities for affordable housing. 

PURPOSE 2: Establish attainable housing by promoting housing choices to allow families, single individuals, older adults, and 

seasonal and year-round workers to live, work, and prosper in the community 

Actions: 

HO4. Review and consider revising, as appropriate, the zoning bylaw to clarify/allow mixed use developments. 

HO5. Evaluate the Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) bylaw provisions to improve efficacy, explore incentives for a greater number of ADUs, 

and connect owners to community resources to provide support and assistance in developing ADUs. 

HO6. Support creative funding and collaborative partnerships (public/private) in the development of community housing, including incentives 

for year-round rentals. 

HO7. Work collaboratively with other towns to increase opportunities for attainable housing. 

HO8. Review and evaluate the zoning bylaw with the aim of promoting more opportunities as appropriate for various types and forms of housing, 

including two-family residential/duplex; multi-unit/multi-family residential; and mixed-use residential development. 

HO9. Prioritize and incentivize the adaptive reuse of existing buildings for housing. 

HO10. Evaluate the use of Town-owned properties for creative housing solutions, including reuse of Town-owned buildings for housing.  

HO11. Evaluate the acquisition of land by the Town for housing, including for joint purposes such as open space uses. 

HO12. Encourage housing in areas near transportation, public services, and economic activities. 

HO13. Explore potential housing programs, opportunities, and funding for those earning 80% to 120% of Area Median Income (AMI). 

110



50 

HO14. Consider programs and regulatory amendments to allow for and support seasonal workforce housing. 

PURPOSE 3: Preserve existing year-round housing 
Actions: 
HO15. Promote ability for residents to transition to different forms of housing and remain in Brewster over a lifetime by providing a wide range 

of housing choices. 

HO16. Explore solutions to allow residents to age in place, including funding or subsidizing building adaptations, support programs, co-

housing, and co-pairing situations. 

HO17. Evaluate the ADU bylaw provisions to improve efficacy, explore incentives for a greater number of ADUs, and connect owners to 

community resources to provide support and assistance in developing ADUs.  

HO18. Support creative funding and collaborative partnerships (public/private) in the preservation of community housing, including incentives 

for year-round rentals. 

HO19. Analyze the impacts of short-term rental operations in town and consider adopting policies, regulations, or programs to govern or 

document short-term rental operations.  

111



1 
 

SUMMARY OF June 2023 VPC REVISIONS TO DRAFT LCP 

This memorandum summarizes and describes substantive revisions by the Vision Planning Committee to 
the accompanying draft LCP (dated June 2023) since the September 2022 draft; various technical, 
formatting, punctation and grammatical issues were identified and edited as well, including revisions for 
clarity. 
 
OVERALL 

• Simplified, clarified, and streamlined language for improved readability and comprehension 

• Added text to underscore the importance of two-way communication between government and 
residents, businesses, organizations and other stakeholders 

• Updated to reflect events and timeline since September 2022 

• Changed the term “Town Center” to “town centers” for clarity, including for consistency with the 
intent of the concept from the 2018 Vision Plan  

• Updated language about the Wing Island Boardwalk and Drummer Boy Park that were 
previously under consideration, in light of the results and actions taken after and in accordance 
with Fall 2022 Town Meeting and spring 2023 Special Town Meeting 

• NOTE: The VPC will update demographic data and community engagement information 
throughout the draft in late August to ensure that most recent/ accurate data are included.   

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

• Revised language about potential Cape Cod Commission certification and the CCC’s role with 
LCPs 

• Revised language to more fully describe stakeholders and stakeholder process 

• Updated language about Fall 2022 Town Meeting and related adoption process and timeline 
 
Section 2: COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 

• Clarification of “town centers” planning concept 
 
Section 3: BUILDING BLOCKS 
“Recent Actions by the Town” were generally updated throughout the section to reflect changes since 
September 2023. 

• Community Character 
o will update the “Recent Actions” text in August 2023 about the COA Needs Assessment 

with some overall findings from the 2023 survey 

• Open Space  
o added text regarding current status of Wing Island and Drummer Boy Park initiatives 

• Local Economy 
Under “Key Issues Moving Forward:”   
o revised language about the zoning approach to support local businesses 
o clarified that Brewster’s housing needs include both year-round and seasonal workforce 

housing 

• Coastal Management  
o updated data on coastal beaches/landings and parking spaces 
o added text about the 2022 Coastal Resilience Grant under “Recent Actions by the Town” 

• Water Resources 
Under “Recent Actions by the Town:”  
o clarified text about the local stormwater bylaw and regulations 

112



2 
 

o added description of the Water Resources Task Force 
▪ Governance 

o updated “Recent Actions…” to describe changes since September 2022 
▪ Community Infrastructure 

o updated “Recent Actions…”  and “Key Issues…” to describe changes since September 
2022, including about current status of Wing Island and Drummer Boy Park initiatives  

▪ Solid Waste 
o “Recent Actions:” added text about ban on nips adopted at spring 2023 TM 
o “Key Issues:” added text about MA recent waste ban on textiles 
o “Key Issues:” added text about the need for better education for landlords and seasonal 

renters on waste and recycling 

• Climate Mitigation and Adaptation 
Under “Recent Actions by the Town:”  
o added text about the recently established Town Energy and Climate Action Committee 
o added text about the new “low lying” roads planning/ grant initiative with the County 

 

Section 4: ACTION PLAN 

Various provisions of this section, associated with the Building Blocks below, have been edited for clarity, 

to better articulate or emphasize desired intent, or to establish the appropriate level of specificity for the 

respective goals, purposes and actions.  In some cases, edits involved consolidating actions, splitting an 

action into multiple new actions, or reorganization:  

 

Community Character 

• Revised Actions CC9 and CC10  

Water Resources 

• Reorganized subsection and better separated actions 

• Deleted ‘Overarching Goal’ and integrated concepts into the purposes and actions of the section 

Open Space 

• Reorganized subsection  

• Revised “Purpose 3” to align with the proposed actions 

Housing 

• Extended the time period set out in “Purpose 1” to align with anticipated LCP adoption date 

Coastal Management 

• Consolidated various actions into a single action- CM11 

Local Economy 

• Revised Action LE6  

• Revised references from ‘small business’ to ‘local business’ for breadth of application 

Governance 

• Revised language to emphasize community engagement and participation 

Community Infrastructure 

• Relocated the ‘Overarching Purpose’ to the LCP’s ‘Implementation’/ Section 7 where its inclusion 

is more appropriate and more in keeping with the overall format and structure of the draft LCP. 

• Revised Action C13 re: Drummer Boy Park to reflect current status 

 

113



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15. Select Board Strategic Plan 

114



1

Jill Scalise

From: Donna Kalinick
Sent: Thursday, June 29, 2023 2:56 PM
To: Jill Scalise
Subject: FW: Select Board Annual Retreat & Strategic Plan
Attachments: Brewster Select Board FY23-24 Strategic Plan FINAL 08.22.pdf; SUMMARY OF 

REVISIONS IN 2023 DRAFT LCP FINAL 061223.docx; VPC REVISIONS 2023 DRAFT LCP 
FINAL 061223 Master for Staff Review.docx

 
 

From: Peter Lombardi <plombardi@brewster-ma.gov>  
Sent: Tuesday, June 27, 2023 12:24 PM 
To: XXX 
Cc: townmanager <townmanager@brewster-ma.gov>; Conor Kenny <ckenny@brewster-ma.gov>; Erika Mawn 
<emawn@brewster-ma.gov>; Select Board <SelectBoard@brewster-ma.gov> 
Subject: Select Board Annual Retreat & Strategic Plan 
 
Good afternoon all, 
 
I hope this email finds you well as we head into peak summer season.  The Select Board is meeting for their annual 
retreat at the end of next month.  The key takeaway from this all-day session will be an update to their Strategic 
Plan.  This plan is broadly intended to reflect and convey our current organizational and community goals for the 
upcoming 2 fiscal years – once again, it will serve as our guide to prioritizing work in the months ahead.  Thanks to the 
continued outstanding work of your committees & Town staff, we have made substantial progress in many areas this 
past year. 
 
At this time, we are looking for feedback from your board/committee regarding the goals identified in the attached 
FY23-24 plan.  Should any be modified?  Should any be eliminated?  Should new goals be considered?   
 
As we have done each of the past four years, your collective input will serve to inform the Board’s discussion at their 
retreat.  Note that we have asked for similar feedback from Department Heads as well.  This year, we will also be asking 
for residents to weigh in on Town values and priorities to help inform the Board’s decision making.   
 

115



2

A few key points to convey: 
 Following the results of the March 6 Special Town Meeting, the Select Board voted on March 13 to cease all 

Town activities associated with design, permitting, and/or construction of a new boardwalk to Wing Island 
 Following the results of the November 14 and March 6 Special Town Meetings, the Town has ceased all 

planning/design work associated with Drummer Boy Park improvements and the Select Board is set to appoint a 
newly reconstituted Drummer Boy Park Advisory Committee next month who will report back their findings to 
Town Meeting in Spring 2024  

 Following the results of the November 14 and March 6 Special Town Meetings and related Town actions, the 
Vision Planning Committee (VPC) has spent the last few months making a series of potential changes to the 
Local Comprehensive Plan (LCP).  An updated draft of this document and a summary of the suggested edits is 
currently under review by Town staff and is attached for your reference.   Please note that once staff feedback 
has been incorporated into the latest draft LCP, the VPC anticipates asking for further community input later this 
summer in advance of bringing it to Town Meeting this fall.   
 

I look forward to hearing from you at your earliest convenience – ideally by Friday July 14 - so that your comments can 
be incorporated into our supporting materials for the retreat. 
 
Thank you for your continued service to the community. 
Peter 
 
Peter Lombardi 
Town Manager 
Town of Brewster 
508-896-3701 x. 1128 
 
Brewster Town Offices are open to the public Monday through Thursday from 8:30am to 4:00pm, and by appointment on 
Fridays.   
 

116



Select Board FY23-24 Strategic Plan

FINAL APPROVED 08.22.22

Vision Building Block Goal # Goal Description Timeline
Degree of 

Complexity

Vision Plan / Local 

Comprehensive Plan 
FY22-23 SB Plan Primary Responsible Party Other Key Stakeholders

Former Sea Camps Properties SC-1 Complete discovery phase, including building 

inventories/ assessments, and continue to implement 

interim property management plan

FY23 Medium  X

Town Administration and Bay & 

Pond Property Planning 

Committees

Town Staff

SC-2 Continue to develop/refine and implement interim 

public access/use plans FY23-24 Higher X X

Town Administration and Bay & 

Pond Property Planning 

Committees

Select Board; BPPC & PPPC Liaisons, 

Representatives, and Town Staff

SC-3 Launch community planning process, engage residents 

and stakeholders, determine support for constructing 

new community center on bay property, and develop 

long-term comprehensive plans for both properties

FY23-24 Higher X X

Town Administration and Bay & 

Pond Property Planning 

Committees

Select Board; BPPC & PPPC Liaisons, 

Representatives, and Town Staff

SC-4 Continue to explore potential short- and long-term 

partnerships that may mitigate acquisition costs or 

operating expenses and may provide enhanced services, 

programs, or amenities for residents

FY23-24 Medium X X

Town Administration and Bay & 

Pond Property Planning 

Committees

Select Board; BPPC & PPPC Liaisons and 

Representatives, and Town Staff

Community Character CC-1 Adopt and implement 5-year Community Preservation 

Plan and seek adoption of proposed bylaw amendments 

to support maximum flexibility to fund projects to meet 

community needs

FY23 Lower X
Community Preservation 

Committee

Town Administration; Select Board; Finance 

Committee; Open Space Committee; 

Affordable Housing Trust; Historical 

Commission; Recreation Commission
CC-2 Identify and evaluate benefits of introducing/ expanding 

targeted local tax relief options FY23 Medium X X Finance Team

Select Board; Finance Committee; Board of 

Assessors; Brewster Association of Part-Time 

Residents
CC-3 Complete sociodemographic study to inform next steps 

in crafting and advancing diversity, equity, and inclusion 

initiatives

FY23 Lower X X Town Administration
Select Board; Human Resources Dept; Town 

Staff

Open Space OS-1 Complete design and implement updated Drummer Boy 

Park Master Plan Phase I improvements in coordination 

with Wing Island Boardwalk project
FY23-24 Medium X X Town Administration

Select Board; Natural Resources Commission 

& Dept; Department of Public Works; 

Brewster Conservation Trust; Brewster 

Historical Society

OS-2 Identify and resolve private party encroachments on 

Town land FY23-24 Lower   
Town Administration & Natural 

Resources Dept

Select Board; Conservation Commission; 

Water Commission & Dept; Brewster 

Conservation Trust

Housing H-1 Develop five-year financial plan for Affordable Housing 

Trust and determine whether additional funding streams 

should be explored to support housing initiatives at a 

range of income levels

FY23 Medium X X
Affordable Housing Trust & 

Finance Team

Select Board; Finance Committee; Housing 

Coordinator

H-2 Begin implementing updated Housing Production Plan 

priority strategies 
FY23 Medium X X

Affordable Housing Trust & 

Housing Coordinator

Select Board; Planning Board; Housing 

Partnership; Town Administration; Planner

H-3 Continue to provide support services to residents, 

including CDBG housing rehabilitation and childcare 

vouchers

FY23-24 Medium X  Housing Coordinator

Select Board; Town Administration; 

Affordable Housing Trust; Human Services 

Committee; Council on Aging

H-4 Advance Millstone Road Community Housing project

FY23-24 Higher X X
Town Administration & Housing 

Coordinator

Select Board; Affordable Housing Trust; 

Community Preservation Committee; Planning 

Dept & Zoning Board of Appeals

1
117



Select Board FY23-24 Strategic Plan

FINAL APPROVED 08.22.22

Vision Building Block Goal # Goal Description Timeline
Degree of 

Complexity

Vision Plan / Local 

Comprehensive Plan 
FY22-23 SB Plan Primary Responsible Party Other Key Stakeholders

Local Economy LE-1 Define and provide necessary supports to effectively 

implement electronic permitting and invest in phased 

digitization of Town records

FY23 Medium X X Town Administration
Select Board; IT Director; Building Dept; 

Health Dept; Planning Dept

LE-2 Continue to host semi-annual roundtable with Town 

officials, Chamber of Commerce, and local business 

community to build on increased outreach and 

communication developed during pandemic

FY23-24 Lower X X Town Administration
Select Board; Town Staff; Chamber of 

Commerce

LE-3 Develop Guide to Doing Business in Brewster

FY24 Medium X Town Administration

Building Dept; Health Dept; Planning Dept; 

Natural Resources Dept; Town Clerk; Chamber 

of Commerce

Coastal Management CM-1 Complete design and permitting of Wing Island 

boardwalk

FY23 Higher X X Town Administration

Select Board; Conservation Commission; 

Natural Resources Commission & Dept; 

Department of Public Works; Brewster 

Conservation Trust; Cape Cod Museum of 

Natural History

CM-2 Consider merits of Cape Cod Commission's model coastal 

resiliency bylaws/regulations and potential 

implementation
FY23-24 Medium X Planning Dept

Planning Board; Town Administration; Board 

of Health & Health Dept; Conservation 

Commission & Natural Resources Dept; 

Building Dept
Water Resources WR-1 Convene a new Water Resources Task Force and develop 

updated plan and timeline for advancing integrated 

water quality initiatives, to include addressing DEP’s 

proposed changes to Title V regulations and continuing 

collaboration with external stakeholders

FY23-24 Higher X X Water Resources Task Force

Town Administration; Select Board;  Natural 

Resources Commission & Dept; Water 

Commission & Dept; Board of Health & Health 

Dept; Planning Board & Dept; Finance 

Committee; Brewster Ponds Coalition 

WR-2 Continue to educate public about new stormwater 

bylaw/regulations and consider refinements as needed FY23 Lower X X Planning Dept

Planning Board; Town Administration; 

Conservation Commission & Natural 

Resources Dept; Building Dept

Community Infrastructure CI-1 Determine support for advancing proposed Brewster 

Ladies Library renovation project
FY23 Lower   Select Board

Town Administration; Brewster Ladies Library 

Association & Library Dept

CI-2 Conduct a needs assessment and develop FY24-28 COA 

(Age Friendly) Community Action Plan
FY23 Medium X  Council on Aging Board & Dept

Select Board; Town Administration; Bay 

Property Planning Committee

CI-3 Work with Nauset School officials to clarify process and 

timeline of next steps regarding results of Elementary 

School Consolidation Feasibility Study, especially in 

relation to other potential Town & School capital 

investments

FY23 Medium X X
Select Board & Town 

Administration

Brewster School Committee & Nauset 

Administration; Finance Committee

CI-4 Complete Millstone Road project final design/ permitting 

and create Road Capital Prioritization Plan FY22-23 Higher X X
DPW Director & Town 

Administration
Select Board; Finance Committee

CI-5 Develop policy to clarify provision of Town services on 

private roads and consider potential amendments to 

private road betterment bylaw

FY23-24 Medium
DPW Director & Town 

Administration

Select Board; Public Safety Team; Planning 

Dept & Planning Board; Finance Team

2
118



Select Board FY23-24 Strategic Plan

FINAL APPROVED 08.22.22

Vision Building Block Goal # Goal Description Timeline
Degree of 

Complexity

Vision Plan / Local 

Comprehensive Plan 
FY22-23 SB Plan Primary Responsible Party Other Key Stakeholders

Governance G-1 Establish and communicate budget capacity to Nauset 

School officials based on the Town’s current and long-

term fiscal sustainability FY23 Medium  X
Select Board & Town 

Administration

Finance Committee & Finance Team; Nauset 

Regional School Committee; Brewster School 

Committee; Nauset School Administration; 

Nauset region Town officials

G-2 Launch new Town website and identify preferred 

enhancements to current communications model FY23 Medium X X Town Administration Select Board; IT Dept; BGTV

G-3 Establish process to revise Brewster Town seal & draft 

related use policy 
FY23-24 Medium Select Board Town Administration & Town Staff

G-4 Evaluate potential amendments to noise bylaw and/or 

develop entertainment license regulations
FY23 Lower  

Select Board & Town 

Administration
Town Staff

G-5 Finalize, adopt, and implement Local Comprehensive 

Plan and monitor progress FY23-24 Medium X X

Vision Planning Committee, 

Select Board, and Planning 

Board

Planning Dept; Town Administration; Town 

Staff

G-6 Develop and launch capital budget and other 

transparency features of new online platform to 

continue to improve accessibility of Town finances

FY23 Medium X X Finance Team Select Board; Finance Committee

G-7 Support Human Resource Department by: 1. Continuing 

to implement findings from HR audit, including 

development of employee handbook 2. Continuing to 

monitor and support employee wellness 3. Creating 

programs to recognize Town staff/volunteers for their 

community service

FY23-24 Medium X X Town Administration Select Board; Human Resources

G-8 Identify priority areas to increase organizational capacity 

to meet enhanced service needs and expanded project 

demands and develop long-term financing plan to fund 

necessary personnel

FY23-24 Medium X X
Town Administration & Finance 

Team
Select Board; Finance Committee; Town Staff

G-9 Consider need for and structure of new Parks & 

Recreation Department responsible for management of 

Drummer Boy Park, former Sea Camps, Dog Park, and 

other existing recreational amenities/programs

FY23-24 Higher X X Town Administration

Select Board; Finance Team; Human 

Resources; Recreation Dept & Commission; 

Natural Resources Dept; Department of Public 

Works

G-10 Develop standard criteria and process to evaluate 

potential land acquisitions and consider establishing 

municipal land acquisition committee
FY23 Medium X Select Board

Town Administration; Open Space 

Committee; Affordable Housing Trust; Water 

Commission

Climate Mitigation & 

Adaptation

CA-1 Develop and implement updated staffing and committee 

model that reflects the Town’s commitment to 

comprehensively advancing energy, climate change, and 

resiliency initiatives

FY23 Medium X Town Administration Select Board; Energy Committee & Manager

CA-2 Develop net zero energy roadmap 
FY24 Higher X X Town Administration

Energy Committee & Manager; Select Board; 

Facilities Manager
Solid Waste Management SW-1 Complete site assessment and determine next steps to 

improve Department of Public Works and Recycling 

Center property and facilities

FY23 Lower X DPW Director
Town Administration; Select Board; Recycling 

Commission

SW-2 Continue hydration station installation project
FY23-24 Lower X Water Superintendent

Town Administration; Select Board; Recycling 

Committee; Water Commission; Facilities 

Manager

3
119



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

17. For Your Information 

120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



 

 

 

 

19. Draft Minutes  
      May 11, 2023 

174



 

1 
 

Brewster Housing Trust  

May 11, 2023, 5:00pm Meeting 

Housing Trust Members Present: Donna Kalinick, Tim Hackert, Vanessa Greene, Ned Chatelain 

(left early), Paul Ruchinskas, Maggie Spade-Aguilar 

Others Present: Jill Scalise, Housing Coordinator; Robert Tobias, Finance Committee Liaison  

1. Call to Order:  Chair Hackert called the meeting to order at 5:00pm, read the required 
notice, and declared a quorum.  
 

2. Citizen’s Forum: None 
 

3. Millstone Affordable Housing Property update: Jill Scalise informed the Trust that the 
Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) met on May 9 and received revised plans that were 
based on input throughout the process. The ZBA closed the public hearing and will be 
reviewing the draft decision at their next meeting on June 13th.     

 
4.  212 Yankee Drive project update, discussion, and vote to expend funds on septic 

repairs: Ms. Kalinick said that since our last Trust meeting, the septic work was 
completed and inspected by the Health Department. We did find out that the boiler 
does need to be replaced. We hope to get the Invitation for Bid (IFB) out in the next 3 to 
4 weeks. A breakdown of expenses was included in the Trust packet. Donna & Jill need 
to meet with legal counsel and go over the expenses and what is CPC eligible. There is a 
gap between what we authorized for expenditure and what is estimated for expenses 
because the back taxes are included in the sheet, but they will be paid out of the 
proceeds of the re-sale. Once we have a firm number for the construction, that will 
come back to the Trust for authorization and will be added to the spreadsheet. Public 
Works will come back to finish the landscaping. Ms. Spade-Aguilar asked for clarification 
on the items that need to go back to legal counsel. Mr. Hackert asked if it would be 
completed by Labor Day. Ms. Kalinick said while the work is straightforward and the 
house is open to the studs, we still have to contract, order materials and complete the 
work. Ms. Scalise added that nothing has moved quickly, and it is more realistic that by 
the end of 2023, it will be complete, particularly with the 60 days fair market lottery and 
then, the closing.  
 

5. Update on Status of Housing Trust Priority Initiatives for FY2022-FY2023-Jill Scalise said 
she thought it might be good to revisit what the Housing Trust priorities currently are 
and then after the summer, the Trust would work on the FY23/FY24 goals. The current 
priority initiatives were approved in January. Ms. Scalise noted that a page was missing 
in the packet and in the Trust application. The first initiative was to develop community 
housing by building, working on the Millstone Road property. Ms. Scalise color coded 
the initiatives and cross referenced them to the updated Housing Production Plan. 

175



 

2 
 

Millstone is moving forward and in the comprehensive permit phase. The second 
initiative was to look at housing at the Cape Cod Sea Camps properties. We have a trust 
member and liaison for both committees, get regular updates and the community 
engagement process is beginning with a forum on May 20th. Continuing on developing 
affordable housing without building, was to revisit the ADU bylaw. Staff has met with 
ADU resources, met internally and the Planning Board has started the process of review 
of the ADU bylaw for updates. Also, the COA is interested in holding an ADU information 
session in the fall. Ms. Spade-Aguilar asked what the Planning Board will be looking at to 
make the process easier. Ms. Scalise said they have only had one meeting; there will be 
more information at the next Trust meeting. Mr. Ruchinskas asked what the timeline is; 
Ms. Scalise said fall town meeting. Ms. Greene asked if the same group who worked on 
the model bylaw template is providing an update. Ms. Scalise said they are not, but now 
there are ADU resource centers to assist residents. Next initiative was to evaluate the 
effectiveness of the rental assistance program and revisit the prospect of rent to own 
properties. We have updated the rental assistance program to up to 120% of fair market 
and will be discussing the program further today. We have not identified properties for 
rent to own, but the CCSC might be an option. Evaluate the effectiveness and reach of 
the CDBG rehabilitation program. Today, the program held an interim public hearing. 
The program is doing well. About 63% of the funds have been encumbered for child care  
vouchers and the housing rehab. is going well. The Town has committed to being the 
lead community for the next grant year. Ms. Scalise noted that this is an extremely 
rewarding program that benefits residents. Mr. Ruchinskas asked when the current 
grant year ends. Ms. Kalinick said September of this year and they expect to hear about 
the new grant in July which is more money and runs 1.5 years. Ms. Kalinick agreed that 
she enjoys working on the CDBG program and being the lead community has not been 
overburdensome. Ms. Scalise thanked the finance and administration team for their 
work and willingness to continue with the program. #4, continue to work on the SHI 
units that are in distress. We continue to work on Yankee Drive, Sean Circle and Belmont 
Park. We are working with DHCD, but the process is very long and complicated. For 
example, for Belmont, the Town is not on the deed rider and enforcement of the deed 
rider lies with DHCD. The Town did take the step of taxing the property at the full rate 
because it was out of compliance by not being owner occupied. Mr. Hackert asked if this 
might be a house that we need to buy back into the SHI. Ms. Scalise said the deed 
restriction is still in place, it is just out of compliance, but it is a situation where the Trust 
might want to make an offer to buy once we have completed the work on Yankee and 
settled Sean Circle. #5, work with the CPC to determine the future of the buy down 
program. That meeting and decision has been made and we will be putting in a funding 
application. #6 create Trust program guidelines and rules; the Trust created guidelines in 
September and entities can now come before the Trust to ask for funding. #7, support  
and participate in the Local Comprehensive Process (LCP), including review of zoning; 
the Trust did this, and the LCP is being worked on again to be brought to the Fall town 
meeting. Moving to Education, hold at least annual forums, Select Board updates and 
post regular information on the website. A forum was held in October and regular 
updates are provided. Also, hold regular joint meetings with other committees. We did 

176



 

3 
 

that with the CPC, and we are looking at a joint meeting with multiple committees 
involved in July about the exploration of Local Preference. This ties into the next 
initiative to engage in community education forums. Advocate and collaborate includes 
for funding strategy from CPC, short term rental revenue, free cash, budget allocations 
and CBDG funds which is ongoing. Create a 5 year Trust Finance Plan which was 
completed. Advocate for a more flexible CPA funding formula, that was accepted at 
spring town meeting. Support the LCP process and collaborate and work with other 
towns and regional entities is ongoing. Engage and communicate to allow residents to 
provide input which is done at every Trust meeting plus during the Millstone process. 
Create a DEI work group- this has not been done yet. Mr. Ruchinskas asked about the 
timing for the FY23/FY24 initiatives. Chair Hackert said probably in July. Ms. Scalise said 
the strategies for the updated HPP are in the packet and should be considered in 
creating new initiatives.  
 

6. Discussion of BAHT oversight of Buydown Program and possible vote on proposed 
terms- Chair Hackert said at the last meeting we did not have on the agenda to vote so 
we will vote on the parameters tonight. Ms. Spade-Aguilar asked about the wording on 
80% AMI- she asked if that could be changed to up to 80% AMI. Also, regarding the re-
sales, the same change should be made, up to 70% AMI. Ms. Scalise said that line is very 
specific to the pricing. “Set to” was the proposed change. Mr. Ruchinskas asked if we 
have to go to the Select Board for any award/expenditure over 50K, like the work at 212 
Yankee. Ms. Kalinick said that we will have to go to the Select Board when the responses 
to the IFB come in. Mr. Ruchinskas suggested that we may want to revisit the $50K limit 
which would be a change in the bylaw. Ms. Greene asked about the first-time 
homebuyer language and what the exceptions are. Ms. Scalise said there is a very 
specific definition of first time home buyer, but one exception is anyone over 55 or a 
displaced homemaker or someone who has not owned a home in 3 years. There were 
(3) clarifications to the terms. Ms. Kalinick moved to approve the buy down program 
terms with the three changes discussed, Ms. Spade Aguilar second. The Trust vote was 
unanimous, 5 to 0.  
 

7. Discussion of annual funding request to CPC for site acquisition for affordable housing 
and possible vote:  Mr. Ruchinskas said he went back to the CPC and reported on the 
trust discussion. Mr. Ruchinskas said he has been thinking about it and reviewed the 
HPP strategy about looking at town-owned land. He asked about the DHCD next funding 
round and how that relates to POAH/HAC. Ms. Kalinick said that her understanding is 
that POAH/HAC will start the funding process once the comprehensive permit phase is 
complete and intends to put a funding application into CPC for the fall town meeting 
and apply to the BAHT in tandem. There will be at least one more ZBA meeting to 
review the draft decision, possibly two and then the appeal period if the comp. permit is 
approved. Chair Hackert said he spoke with Brewster Conservation Trust, and he had a 
general discussion with them, but there were no concrete properties discussed. At the 
last meeting, Maggie suggested we hire someone to assist with looking at the town and 
other available property. Chair Hackert said there are two decision points-when we ask 

177



 

4 
 

the CPC for development money and if we hire a consultant to assist with looking at 
land. Chair Hackert is in favor of waiting to ask for development money until after our 
priority project, Millstone, has completed the funding phase. Mr. Ruchinskas agrees but 
stated he would advocate strongly for this to be in our work plan for FY24. Mr. 
Ruchinskas said there is plenty of land still around the police station, but we need to 
look at the specific encumbrances around that property. There was consensus to wait 
on asking for development money and there will be discussion of looking at hiring a 
consultant in July.  
 

8. Discussion and possible vote on Rental Assistance Program: Continuation, program 
terms and Request for Quotes (RFQ)- Ms. Scalise provided a memo with background. 
The rental assistance program had been a 2020 Trust priority and there was a task 
group. There was also a local group that looked at rental assistance during the 
pandemic. The BAHT established the rental assistance program with a covid emergency 
component in 2022. The program is funded with CPC funds, $225,000 total has been 
allocated through town meeting. There is a fact sheet in the packet with suggested 
updates if the BAHT wants to continue. The BAHT put out an RFQ for administration and 
HAC was chosen. There are currently 7 participants in the program; we have seen an 
increase in participation since the decrease in federal and state funding. Jill shared a 
quote from HAC about the impact of the program on residents, stressing that the 
ongoing stipend is key. Since July 2020, 77 Brewster households have received 381,000 
in other funding assistance, like RAFT; $36,000 has been encumbered through the local 
rental assistance program. The maximum stipend is $500 per month with a $25.00 
monthly administration fee. With the current funding rate, the cost for 10 households 
would be $63,000 per year or $189,000 for 3 years with administrative costs to be 
determined with a new RFQ. Maggie asked if we have seen an increase in participation 
since we increased the AMI. Ms. Scalise said we did not increase the AMI; we increased 
the fair market rent to 120%. We are still waiting for the new 2023 HUD rates. It has 
enabled a few more households to access the program. Four out of the five households 
are seniors, all are receiving the maximum benefit, all are at or below 60% AMI and 
none of the households have children under 18. Ms. Kalinick asked how far over 10 
households can we go before we start to worry about funding. She would like to 
consider letting more than 10 households in due to the loss of federal and state funding. 
She would like to go to 15, but understands you have to have the money to fund for 3 
years. Ms. Scalise said people are approved for one year of funding then are re-
evaluated; having the funding for 2 years is important. It would be $94,500 a year for 15 
households. We currently have $150,000 in the program after the $36,000 encumbered. 
Ms. Kalinick said she would like to advocate for going to 15, but we will have to keep an 
eye on it and apply for more funding sooner than later. Maggie said she is in favor but 
worries about a requirement to the landlord to not raise the rent more than the normal 
cost of living. Chair Hackert said we are not trying to implement rent control but assist 
people within the existing housing stock. Ms. Spade-Aguilar said she understands that 
we are not talking about a rent control policy, but not encouraging landlords to increase 
rent based on a stipend being in place. Ms. Scalise said there has not been anyone who 

178



 

5 
 

has completed a full year yet. That evaluation will take place this summer and then we 
may have a decision point. Mr. Ruchinskas understands Maggie’s concerns, but we 
should be consistent with state program guidelines. Mr. Ruchinskas wondered if we 
would need to extend beyond the three years and worries that people would lose their 
housing because of lack of funds after the 3 years. Ms. Scalise explained that there is 
about a 3 year wait for mobile vouchers now and HAC is working to get people who are 
receiving rental assistance on the waitlist for mobile vouchers. It is a discussion point for 
the Trust if this does not work. It was decided that the Trust should approve the 
guidelines and the continuation of the program, but we can revisit these issues after the 
year is up. Ms. Kalinick explained that the last RFQ was a one-year contract with the 
option for a two-year renewal. She would like to do a 3-year contract, funding is only 
certified for one year. We would include the fact sheet in the RFQ with the language 
that the trust may update the guidelines. The Trust will need to monitor the program. 
HAC has provided good information. Ms. Scalise said in the fact sheet and guidelines, we 
have removed the covid pandemic component. She will also update the documents to 
reflect up to 15 households with discussion with the Trust if that limit is reached. The 
outcomes and metrics have been updated to remove the pandemic component as well. 
Mr. Ruchinskas asked if the $500 has been sufficient. Ms. Scalise said there was one 
household that was declined because $500 was not enough, but $600 or $700 would 
not have been enough. The administrator will bring trends that they see to the Trust for 
discussion. HAC has been very resourceful in assisting people.  Mr. Ruchinskas moved to 
approve the Rental Assistance for 3 years, serving up to 15 families and to issue an RFQ 
for a 3-year contract, Ms. Spade Aguilar second. The Trust vote was unanimous, 5 to 0.  
 

9. Housing Coordinator update: Ms. Scalise started with the ribbon cutting celebration for 
Brewster Woods that took place earlier in the week and was a celebration of the many 
organizations and people who helped make Brewster woods happen. There are two 
beautiful buildings with solar and a CCRTA bus stop. It was great to see families walking 
around with kids and bikes and chairs on the front porch of the neighborhood. One of 
the residents who spoke is a senior from Brewster who works in the permit office and 
was able to remain in town. Habitat is waiting for their market plan to be approved then 
they will start the marketing for the 2 new homes on Phoebe Way. Ms. Scalise shared a 
letter from a young woman who received buy down funds and thanked the housing 
program for helping her buy her own home- she grew up in Brewster and is thrilled to 
be returning. All of the CPC housing related articles passed at town meeting and 
$500,000 of short-term rental revenue was approved to be transferred to the Trust. Mr. 
Ruchinskas said he appreciates the CDBG reports, but can they provide the breakdown 
of childcare vouchers per town. Mr. Ruchinskas said he was surprised that there were 
still 30 market rate units available at Serenity. Ms. Scalise and Ms. Kalinick met with the 
onsite manager recently to discuss the property. Serenity did increase the market rent 
rates in phase two and we did express our concern about that at the time.  
 

10. Information and possible discussion on Year-Round Deed Restrictions- Chair Hackert 
included an article from the Chronicle about the Chatham Select Board submitting a 

179



 

6 
 

letter of support for the legislation. We will have further discussion with the Select 
Board about this. Ms. Scalise said that CDP is doing a feasibility study for a year round 
deed program and Jill and Jon Idman provided input into the scope.  
  

11. Cape Cod Sea Camps updates:  Chair Hackert said there will be a community forum on 
May 20th on site. Ms. Kalinick said registration is open and all the information is posted 
on the Sea Camps project page on the website. There will be two sessions, childcare and 
rides available. All of the discovery material and an overview video is posted for people 
to watch prior to attending. Chair Hackert said at the last Pond meeting, BCT presented 
a water quality report related to the pond and MA Audubon presented on potential 
programming. The Forum will be very interactive. The Bay property will be open that 
day from 9 to 4 for people to walk around. Maggie was not at the last meeting, but the 
YMCA did present their potential program on the Bay property. Ms. Kalinick said she 
wants to make it clear that this will be one of the areas that we will ask residents to 
weigh in on whether they are supportive of this or other partnerships. Ms. Kalinick said 
the pool will be open to residents on June 26th and they originally thought they would 
have another entity, like the Y run the pool, but it ended up that the Town is running the 
pool program and was able to get enough lifeguards. There are a lot of details that have 
to be worked out as you open more programming on the property and more staff 
required to have the property open. Maggie said there are also events happening on the 
Bay such as the dance movement event on Saturday, sponsored by the Cultural Council.  
 

12. Status of Housing Trust appointments: Ms. Greene, Ms. Hillis-Dineen and Mr. 
Ruchinskas are all up at the end of June. Ms. Hillis-Dineen will not be continuing. The 
Planning Board will have to vote on a new member. BHP and CPC will have to vote on 
their members and then it will go to the Select Board for their appointment process.  
 

13. For Your Information: Chair Hackert included a superman article where he is supporting 
housing and an article from the Chronicle about employers buying housing for their 
employees that will be in the next packet. Chair Hackert thanked Paul for speaking at 
town meeting. Ms. Scalise said there is a Housing Survey that the Commission has going 
on right now and encouraged folks to take it. The COA is having a health and wellness 
fair on Friday and the housing program will have a table there.  

 
14. Any other business not anticipated: None 

 

 
15. Approval of Minutes from April 6, 2023:  Donna Kalinick moved to approve the April 6, 

2023 minutes with technical edits from Chair Hackert.  Vanessa Greene seconded. The 
vote was unanimous, 5 to 0.  
 

16. Next Meeting: June 1, 2023 at 5PM  
 

180



 

7 
 

17. Adjournment:  Donna Kalinick moved adjournment at 6:38 PM, Mr. Ruchinskas 
seconded. Unanimously approved, 5 to 0.  

 
Respectfully Submitted,  

Donna Kalinick, Assistant Town manager 

Meeting Packet:  

Approved:  

181


	Agenda
	7. Millstone Affordable Housing
	9. Select Board Information 
	Insert from: "9. Housing Update for Select Board 06.05.23 with attachments.pdf"
	Memorandum
	Affordable Housing Trust Program Guidelines
	 "Affordable Housing Trust Fund Bylaw 05.07.2018.pdf"
	chapter 18: Affordable Housing Trust Fund
	§ 18-1 Name of the Trust.
	§ 18-2 Purpose.
	§ 18-3 Board of Trustees.
	§ 18-4 Meetings of the Trust.
	§ 18-5 Powers of the Board.
	§ 18-6 Acts of Trustees.
	§ 18-7 Status of Trust and Board of Trustees.
	§ 18-8 Custodian of funds.
	§ 18-9 Funds paid to the Trust.
	§ 18-10 Taxes.
	 Affordable Housing Trust Program Guidelines and Application

	§ 18-11 Duration of the Trust.
	§ 18-12 Compensation of Trustees.
	§ 18-13 Annual report.
	§ 18-14 Recording; amendments.
	§ 18-15 Titles.


	Parameters of proposed BAHT Buydown Program
	Proposed BAHT Buydown Application
	Draft Letter of Support for BAHT Buydown Grant


	11. CPC Buydown Application
	FY23 HUD Income Limits
	12. Rental Assistance
	HAC Rental Assistance Quarterly Report
	Rental Assistance Program Guidelines
	13. Housing Coordinator Report
	May Housing Coordinator Report
	Habitat Phoebe Way Flyer
	ADU Timeline & Presentation
	14. Local Comprehensive Plan info
	15. Select Board Strategic Plan
	17. For Your Information
	19. Draft Minutes May 11, 2023

	Textfield-2: 
	_RB-1: Off
	Textfield-3: 
	ChkBox: Off
	Textfield-4a: 07.06.2023
	Name of CoApplicants if applicable: 
	Textfield-5: Jill Scalise, Housing Coordinator or Donna Kalinick, Assistant Town Manager
	Textfield-6: 2198 Main St., Brewster, MA 02631
	Contact Persons Daytime Phone Number: 508.896.3701  ext. 1169 or ext 1130
	Textfield-7: jscalise@brewster-ma.gov or dkalinick@brewster-ma.gov
	Textfield-8: Brewster Affordable Buydown Program
	Project Address or assessors parcel ID: Brewster
	Open Space: Off
	Historic Preservation: Off
	Recreation: Off
	Community Housing: On
	CPA funding requested: 250,000
	Total Cost of Proposed Project: 250,000
	Textfield-4: Brewster Affordable Housing Trust (BAHT)
	Text1: The Brewster Affordable Housing Trust's (BAHT) Affordable Buydown Program is a continuation of the Brewster Affordable Homebuyers Buy Down Program which began in 2007 and, over the past 16 years, expended $360,000 to assist 12 households in purchasing affordable homes in Brewster. The Buydown program was first developed by the Community Preservation Committee and provided up to $30,000 of assistance to reduce the purchase price of the property and make the home affordable for a first-time home buyer making up to 80% of the AMI. The Buy Down award, provided at closing, took the form of a 30 year forgivable interest-free loan, and also required an permanent affordable deed restriction to be placed on the property. A promissory note was signed, and both a municipal lien and affordable deed rider were recorded on the property.Funding for the original Buy Down Program is now exhausted. Today Brewster has a municipal housing trust. In January 2023 the CPC and BAHT held a joint meeting where they discussed several Brewster housing initiatives including the Buy Down Program. It was decided that, going forward, the BAHT would manage the Buydown Program. After evaluating the program and current increasing mortgage rates, the initial limit of grant assistance was increased $50,000 for first-time affordable homebuyers purchasing a home in Brewster. The actual amount of assistance will be determined on a home-by-home basis. Amounts above $50,000 may be considered but would require Select Board approval. The aim is to ensure that SHI home resales are affordable with a sales price set to be affordable for a household making 80% AMI. The program, in form, continues as previously. Homebuyers must agree to place a permanent affordable deed restriction on the home. The grant funds will reduce, buydown, the purchase price of the home and be provided as an interest free loan, forgivable after 30 years. The program is targeted to preserve affordable homes already on the Town's Subsidized Housing Inventory (SHI). Some of the Town's older deed restrictions can be lost if an eligible purchaser cannot be found. Furthermore, the deed rider resale formulas may result in a price that may not be affordable to low-to-moderate income households earning up to 80%AMI. Occasionally, a home may be in disrepair. Buydown funds have been helpful in situations that require considerable repairs to make the home functional and livable.Please see Attachment A: Parameters of Affordable Housing Trust Buydown Program" for a more complete description of the program. Attachment B provides the Buydown Program application.
	Text2: N/A
	Text3: Community Housing Goal #5 of the Brewster Community Preservation Plan is "Continue to support the Brewster Buy Down Program to assist eligible first-time homebuyers. This project specifically addresses this goal. This project also meets goal #2: "Support eligible housing initiatives and ongoing work of the Brewster Affordable Housing Trust to address local housing needs." The Trust will be overseeing the Buydown program. Additionally, the Buydown program helps to preserve the Town's affordable housing inventory. This meets goal #4: "Support the preservation of the existing stock of affordable rental and ownership housing."
	Text5: Over the past 16 years, the Town has been supportive of the Brewster Affordable Buydown Program. May 2007 Town Meeting allocated $60,000 in CPA funding to begin the buydown program and then allocated an additional $300,000 to the program in November 2008. The  Community Preservation Committee and Housing Partnership have been involved in overseeing the program. Letters of support from the Select Board, Housing Assistance Corporation, and Habitat for Humanity are included with the application as well as a letter from a Brewster affordable home buyer. Please see Attachment C- Letters of Support
	Text7: Established in 2018, the Housing Trust has a solid track record of initiating and implementing local housing programs. Members of the Trust represent the Select Board, Planning Board, Housing Partnership, CPC, and community at large. This creates excellent communication and collaboration. The Buydown program will continue to be staffed by the Housing Coordinator who has a Master's in Social Service, over 25 years of social work experience with housing issues, and six years staffing the current Buy Down program.
	Text6: The current Buy Down Program has no funding. With approval, the project implementation would begin immediately. The use of funds is contingent on the timing and number of affordable home resales as well as the resale price requirements as set out in each specific deed rider. Over the past 6 years, there has been an average of one buy down award per year. However, with the increase in mortgage rates and increase in affordable home resales, there may be an increase in the number of buydown grants. It is expected that the funding would last for a minimum of 3 years.
	Text4: The Buydown Program has several community benefits. The Buydown program:- Preserves homes on the Town's SHI that are at risk of losing their affordable deed restrictions. - Provides housing options in Town and enables folks to purchase affordable homes in Brewster. - Supports Brewster's community character and economic vitality with housing options for local workers and families.
	Text8: Established in 2018, the Housing Trust has a solid track record of initiating and implementing local housing programs. Members of the Trust represent the Select Board, Planning Board,Housing Partnership, CPC, and community at large. This creates excellent communication and collaboration. The Buydown program will continue to be staffed by the Housing Coordinator who has a Master's in Social Service, over 25 years of social work experience with housing issues, and six years staffing the current Buy Down program.
	Text9: N/A
	Text10: Public funding has been determined to be appropriate for the Buydown program. If needed, some Housing Trust funds may be available to augment CPC Buydown program funds.
	Text11: Please seeAttachment D: The Housing Trust's financial statement  Attachment E: The Housing Trust's five-year financial plan
	Text12: N/A
	Text13: N/A
	Meets one or more of the Open Space goals listed i: Off
	Permanently protect important wildlife habitat inc: Off
	Provide opportunities for passive recreation and e: Off
	Enhance or protect wildlife corridors promote conn: Off
	Provide connections with existing trails or potent: Off
	Preserve scenic views or border a scenic road: Off
	Protect drinking water quantity and quality: Off
	Provide flood controlstorage: Off
	Preserve important surface water bodies including: Off
	Preserve priority parcels in the Towns Open Space: Off
	Meets one or more of the Historical Preservation g: Off
	Protect preserve enhance restore andor rehabilitat: Off
	Protect preserve enhance restore andor rehabilitat-0: Off
	Protect preserve enhance restore andor rehabilitat-1: Off
	Demonstrate a public benefit andor public access o: Off
	Otherwise provide permanent protection for maintai: Off
	Project site should not be privately owned unless: Off
	Meets one or more of the Community Housing goals l: On
	Increase the supply of yearround affordable rental: On
	Build support for addressing housing needs through: Off
	Create housing that is affordable and appropriate: Off
	Increase local capacity to plan advocate for and c: On
	Increase the variety of mixedincome housing choice: Off
	Provide at least 10 of Brewsters yearround housing: On
	Ensure long term affordability: On
	Commit to a resident selection process that promot: On
	Meets one or more of the Recreation goals listed i: Off
	Support multiple active and passive recreation use: Off
	Serve a significant number of residents and visito: Off
	Expand the range of recreational opportunities ava: Off
	Benefit other Brewster committees providing recrea: Off
	Promote the use of alternative corridors that prov: Off
	Promotes or enhances accessibility Please elaborat: Off


